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At Vakrangee Limited, we are creating the world’s 
largest retail distribution channel. Not only are we 
able to deliver over 1,000 services and ~60 million 
products through our assisted e-Commerce model, 
but we also have the ability to handle the logistics 
to both urban and rural locations with equal ease. 
By managing our inbound supply chains with great 
efficiency, we aim to provide a deeply gratifying “last-
mile” experience to our targeted base of 200 million+ 
customers across pan India.  

No matter how remotely they live, our Vakrange 
Kendras enable our customers to access a wide array 
of goods and services, such as banking & insurance 
products, e-Governance services, getting an Aadhaar 
Card made, paying utility bills, and much more, within 
walking distance. Government subsidies can now 
be deposited directly into their bank accounts. With 
assisted e-commerce, our rural and urban customers 
can access the same choices available globally, at 
the same prices and terms as any urban customer is 
privileged to receive. Today, our Kendras have become 
indispensable modern-day convenience stores for 
many ordinary people, whose lives get transformed 
when a Vakrangee outlet opens nearby. 

The deep portfolio of services that we offer also 
creates a strong impact on local communities. At 
Vakrangee, we recognise the importance of providing 
a consistent quality and experience, even to low-
income or remote households. If we wish to progress 
to become a first world nation, integrating an entire 
population into a modern economy is a national 
priority. At Vakrangee, our ultimate goal is to see that 
every Indian has the opportunity to benefit from 
financial inclusion, financial literacy and enabling 
Government programmes. We are fast becoming the 
obvious choice for millions of people. 

As we cater to India’s unserved and underserved 
citizens in rural and “difficult to reach” areas in urban 
India, we recognise the need to expand our delivery 
routes to remote areas, while also considering the 
end-to-end supply chain network design and omni-
channel distribution challenges. As we continue on 
our path of growth, we aim to ensure that people 
from each and every pin code have access to our 
network and superior service technology. This, in 
turn, makes us a valuable partner to a number of 
companies interested in selling and delivering their 
wares to the “last-mile”. Our vision is to have more than 
75,000 Vakrangee Kendras operational by 2020 across 
India, serving an addressable marketplace of more 
than a billion people.

Ab Sab Kuch Asaan 

























































































































































































































Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Vakrangee Limited,

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
1.	 We have audited the accompanying standalone 

financial statements of Vakrangee Limited (the 
‘Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, which we have signed under 
reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

2.		  The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Accounting 
Standard 30, Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India to the extent it does not contradict 
any other accounting standard referred to in Section 
133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.		  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

4.		  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation 



8.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books;

	 (c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the accompanying standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Accounting 
Standard 30, Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India to the extent it does not contradict 
any other accounting standard referred to in Section 
133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014; 

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2016 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2016 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

	 (f )	 With respect to adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in Annexure B. 

	 (g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us

	 (i)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements - Refer Note No. 21 to the financial 
statements;

	 (ii)	 The Company has long-term contracts other than 
derivative contracts as at March 31,2016 for which 
there were no material foreseeable losses;

	 (iii)	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company, during the 
year ended March 31, 2016

For S. K. Patodia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 112723W

Arun Poddar	
Partner	
Mem. No. : 134572

Place: Mumbai  	
Date: May 11, 2016				  
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i. 	 (a)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

	 (b)	 The fixed assets are physically verified by the 
Management according to a phased programme 
designed to cover all the items over the year which, in 
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material 
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	 The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed 
in Note 12 on fixed assets to the financial statements 
are held in the name of the company.

ii.	 The inventory has been physically verified by the 
Management during the year. In our opinion, the 
frequency of verification is reasonable. The discrepancies 
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared 
to book records were not material.

iii. 	 The Company has granted unsecured loan, to three 
subsidiary companies covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
company has not granted any secured or unsecured 
loans to firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of 
the Companies Act:

	 (a)	 The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans 
were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the 
company.

	 (b)  	In respect of the aforesaid loans, the parties are 
repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are 
also regular in payment of interest as applicable

	 (c)	 In respect of the aforesaid loans, amount is not 
overdue for more than 90 days.

iv. 	 In our opinion, the Company has not given any loan, 
guarantee or security in respect of loans or made 
investments, as per the provisions of section 185 and 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits within 
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed 
there under.

vi. 	 The Central Government of India has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section(1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act.

vii. 	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and the records of the Company examined 

by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in 
depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income 
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, and other material statutory 
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and the records of the Company examined by 
us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or value added tax 
or cess which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute.

viii.	 According to the records of the Company examined by 
us and the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
borrowing to any financial institution, bank, government 
or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

ix.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and the records of the Company examined by us, 
the Company has not raised any money by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer and term loans during 
the year. Accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the 
Order are not applicable to the company.

x.	 During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by 
its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the 
year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the 
Management.

xi.	 The Company has paid / provided for Managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act.

xii.	 As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi 
Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

xiii.	 In our opinion and as per information and explanations 
provided to us by management all the transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with the provisions 
of sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required under Accounting 
Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures specified under 

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 7 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Vakrangee 
Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2016

110                          VAKRANGEE LIMITED  
Annual Report 15-16



Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

xiv.	 The company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review except 
conversion of share warrants into equity shares during the 
year. The Company has complied with the requirements of 
Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the amounts 
raised have been used for the purposes for which they 
were raised.

xv.	 According to the records of the Company examined by 
us and the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with its directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 The Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of 	the Order 
are not applicable to the Company. 

For S. K. Patodia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 112723W

Arun Poddar	
Partner	
Mem. No. : 134572

Place: Mumbai  	
Date: May 11, 2016 

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 7 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Vakrangee 
Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2016
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 8(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of 
Vakrangee Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.	 1.	 We have audited the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of Vakrangee Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

2.		  The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation, and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls which were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.		  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed 
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects

4.		  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial control system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included operating 
and understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exist, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risk of material misstatement of the financial statement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

5.		  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

6.		  A company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles. A company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that :

	 i.	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
details, accurately and fairly reflect the transaction and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;

	 ii.	 Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with the generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and

	 iii.	 Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
dispositions of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

7.		  Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future period are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
may become inadequate because of the changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

7.		  In our opinion, the company, in all material respect, 
an adequate internal financial control system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India 

For S. K. Patodia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 112723W

Arun Poddar	
Partner	
Mem. No. : 134572

Place: Mumbai  	
Date: May 11, 2016	

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 8(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of 
Vakrangee Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2016.
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 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015

I Equity & Liabilities
1.	 Shareholders’ funds
	 (a)	 Share Capital 2  5,291.96  5,034.82 
	 (b)	 Reserves and Surplus 3  1,48,908.95  93,118.10 
	 (c)	 Money received against 

Share Warrant
4

 -    25,000.00 
 1,54,200.91  1,23,152.92 

2. 	 Non - Current Liabilities
	 (a) 	 Long -Term Borrowings 5  1,250.00  3,740.60 
	 (b) 	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6  1,274.04  4,234.40 
	 (c) 	 Other Long - Term Liabilities 7  216.62  157.17 

 2,740.66  8,132.17 
3. 	 Current Liabilities
	 (a)	 Short - Term Borrowings 8  28,275.04  29,968.80 
	 (b)	 Trade Payables 9  11,087.88  21,079.56 
	 (c)	 Other Current Liabilities 10  3,224.84  7,755.88 
	 (d)	 Short - Term Provisions 11  12,436.10  13,654.35 

 55,023.86  72,458.59 
TOTAL  2,11,965.43  2,03,743.68 

II Assets
1. 	 Non - Current Assets
	 (a)	 Fixed Assets 12
		  (i) 	 Tangible Assets  13,180.52  27,190.44 
		  (ii) 	 Intangible Assets  -    -   
		  (iii) 	 Capital Work-in-

Progress
-  1,009.11 

	 (b) 	 Non - Current Investments 13  270.94  281.00 
	 (c) 	 Long - Term Loans and 

Advances
14  1,122.06  480.48 

	 (d) 	 Other Non - Current Assets 15  1,383.20  214.51 
 15,956.72  29,175.54 

2. 	 Current Assets
	 (a) 	 Inventories 16  46,447.38  13,352.59 
	 (b) 	 Trade Receivables 17  87,707.96  1,22,164.09 
	 (c)	 Cash and Cash equivalents 18  16,539.82  3,677.83 
	 (d)	 Short - Term Loans and 

Advances
19  6,585.10  4,209.91 

	 (e)	 Other Current Assets 20  38,728.45  31,163.73 
 1,96,008.71  1,74,568.14 

TOTAL  2,11,965.43  2,03,743.68 
Significant Accounting Policies 1

Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2016

As per our report of even date 
				  
For S. K. Patodia & Associates	 For & on behalf of the Board 			 
Chartered Accountants					   
FRN : 112723W				  

Arun Poddar	 Dinesh Nandwana	  Subhash Singhania 
Partner	 Managing Director & CEO	  Chief Financial Officer 
Mem. No. 134572	 DIN : 00062532	
		
Place : Mumbai	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar	 Darshi Shah
Date   : May 11, 2016	 Director 	 Company Secretary 	
	 DIN : 00062638
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 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Note  
No.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

I Revenue from Operations 23  3,16,861.27  2,77,537.20 
II Other Income 24  1,203.00  956.31 
III Total Revenue (I + II)  3,18,064.27  2,78,493.51 
IV Expenses

Operating Expenses 25  2,30,789.82  2,01,908.15 
Changes in Inventories 26  113.99  (65.29)
Employee Benefits Expenses 27  2,535.80  1,957.41 
Finance Costs 28  5,592.25  7,491.91 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Expense

12  16,353.35  16,434.59 

Other Expenses 29  2,241.09  1,956.30 
Total Expenses  2,57,626.31  2,29,683.07 

V Profit before Exceptional and 
Extraordinary Items and Tax (III-IV)

 60,437.97  48,810.44 

VI Exceptional Items  -    -   
VII Profit before Extraordinary Items 

and Tax (V-VI)
 60,437.97  48,810.44 

VIII Extraordinary Items  -    -   
IX Profit Before Tax (VII-VIII)  60,437.97  48,810.44 
X Tax Expense:

(a) 	 Current Tax  24,074.92  18,248.01 
(b) 	Deferred Tax  (2,960.36)  (1,495.66)
(c) 	 Tax of Earlier Year  176.29  0.79 
(d) 	 MAT Credit Entitlement - -

 21,290.85  16,753.14 
XI Profit for the Period from 

Continuing Operations (IX - X)
39147.12 32057.30

XII Profit/(Loss) for the Period from 
Discontinuing Operations

 -    -   

XIII Tax Expense of Discontinuing 
Operations

 -    -   

XIV Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing 
Operations (After Tax) (XII-XIII)  -    -   

XV Profit for the Period (XI + XIV)  39,147.12  32,057.30 
XVI  No. of equity shares for  

computing EPS
(1) 	 Basic  51,98,24,565  50,34,82,240 
(2) 	 Diluted  53,04,24,580  53,11,03,578 

XVII Earnings Per Equity Share (Face 
Value ` 1/- Per Share):

30

(1) 	 Basic (`)  7.53  6.37 
(2) 	 Diluted (`)  7.38  6.04 
Significant Accounting Policies 1

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2016

As per our report of even date 
				  
For S. K. Patodia & Associates	 For & on behalf of the Board 			 
Chartered Accountants					   
FRN : 112723W				  

Arun Poddar	 Dinesh Nandwana	  Subhash Singhania 
Partner	 Managing Director & CEO	  Chief Financial Officer 
Mem. No. 134572	 DIN : 00062532	
		
Place : Mumbai	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar	 Darshi Shah
Date   : May 11, 2016	 Director 	 Company Secretary 	
	 DIN : 00062638
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Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended March 31, 2016

(` in Lakhs)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars  For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2016 

 For the 
year ended 

March 31, 2015

I Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations  60,437.97  48,810.45 

Profit before tax from discontinuing operations  -    -   

Profit before tax  60,437.97  48,810.45 

Non-cash  adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation/amortization on continuing operation  16,353.35  16,434.59 

Depreciation/amortization on discontinuing operation  -    -   

Loss/(profit) on sale of fixed assets  (134.89)  (18.41)

Employee  stock compensation expense  (134.34)  9.12 

Net gain on sale of non-current investments  (14.62)  (66.24)

Interest expense  5,430.60  6,767.19 

Interest income  (740.06)  (670.41)

Dividend income  (2.00)  -   

Operating Profit before working capital changes  81,196.01  71,266.29 

Movements in working capital : 

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables  (9,991.68)  (4,117.43)

Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions  (2,983.74)  (1,204.53)

Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities  (4,531.03)  (1,905.69)

Increase / (decrease) in other long-term liabilities  59.45  (174.89)

Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables  34,456.13  (42,968.44)

Decrease / (increase) in inventories  (33,094.79)  (292.08)

Decrease / (increase) in long-term loans and advances  (641.58)  5,050.22 

Decrease / (increase) in short-term loans and advances  (2,375.19)  (569.99)

Decrease / (increase) in other current assets  (7,564.72)  (11,964.63)

Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets  (1,168.69)  351.27 

Cash generated from /(used in) operations  53,360.14  13,470.12 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (28,936.94)  (14,187.11)

Net cash flow from / used in operating activities (A)  24,423.20  (716.99)
II Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets, including intangible assets, CWIP and capital  advances  (1,335.55)  (436.11)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  136.12  121.17 

Proceeds of non-current investments  64.61  236.24 

Purchase of non-current investments  (39.94)  (75.00)

Interest received  740.06  670.41 

Dividends received  2.00  -   

Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B)  (432.70)  516.71 
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III Cash flow from financing activities  

Proceeds from issuance of share capital  7.14  -   

Proceeds from Warrant & Share Application Money  -    14,784.95 

Proceeds from securities premium on issuance of share capital  66.69  -   

Proceeds from long-term borrowings  (2,490.60)  (4,880.42)

Proceeds from short-term borrowings  (1,693.75)  (670.22)

Interest paid  (5,430.60)  (6,767.19)

Dividends paid on equity shares  (1,322.89)  (1,258.71)

Tax on equity dividend paid  (264.50)  (251.67)

Net cash flow from/(used in) in financing  activities (C)  (11,128.51)  956.74 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)  12,861.99  756.47 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  3,677.83  2,921.37 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  16,539.82  3,677.83 

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  5.33  5.47 

Cheques/ drafts on hand  -    -   

With banks - on current account  13,872.87  534.02 

                       on deposit account  2,631.49  3,104.53 

                      unpaid dividend accounts*  30.13  33.82 

Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 18)  16,539.82  3,677.83 

(` in Lakhs)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars  For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2016 

 For the 
year ended 

March 31, 2015 

* The company can utilize these balances only toward settlement of the respective unpaid dividend.	
				  
For S. K. Patodia & Associates	 For & on behalf of the Board 			 
Chartered Accountants					   
FRN : 112723W				  

Arun Poddar	 Dinesh Nandwana	  Subhash Singhania 
Partner	 Managing Director & CEO	  Chief Financial Officer 
Mem. No. 134572	 DIN : 00062532	
		
Place : Mumbai	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar	 Darshi Shah
Date   : May 11, 2016	 Director 	 Company Secretary 	
	 DIN : 00062638
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Notes to Financial Statements
as on March 31, 2016

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies
Vakrangee Limited (‘‘the Company’’) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated in May 1990 under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange in India.

Vakrangee Limited along with its subsidiaries, Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. (Philippines), Vakrangee Finserve Ltd. provides diverse 
solutions, activities in e-governance sector with special competencies in handling massive, multi-state, and e-governance 
enrollment projects and software and IT solutions, Data Digitization, etc. 

A.	 Basis of Accounting  
	 These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in the Companies 

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 notified by the Central Government in exercise of the power conferred under sub-
section (1) (a) of section 642 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Rule 7 of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and Accounting Standard–30 
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the 
extent it does not contradict any other accounting standard referred to in section 133 of the Act. The financial statements 
have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. The accounting 
policies have been consistently applied by the Company unless otherwise stated.

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services and the 
time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current – non current classification of assets and liabilities.

B.	 Use of Estimates 
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates 

and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial 
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Differences between actual 
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

 
C.	 Recognition of Income & Expenditure
	 Revenue is recognized when it is earned and no significant uncertainty exists as to its realisation or collection. The 

Company recognizes revenue when the significant terms of the arrangement are enforceable, services have been 
delivered and the collectability is reasonably assured. The method of recognizing the revenues and costs depends on the 
nature of the services rendered.

	 The Company follows the accrual basis of accounting except in the following cases, where the same are recorded on cash 
basis on ascertainment of right and obligation.

	 i.	 Insurance Claim

	 ii.	 Dividend Income, if any.

D.	 Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets
	 Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all expenditure 

necessary to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Own manufactured assets are capitalized 
inclusive of all direct costs and attributable overheads. Capital work-in-progress comprises of advances paid to acquire 
fixed assets and the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use as at the balance sheet date. In the 
case of new undertaking, preoperative expenses are capitalized upon the commencement of commercial production. 

	 Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for their acquisition. Cost of an internally generated asset 
comprises all expenditure that can be directly attributed, or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis, to creating, 
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Notes to Financial Statements
as on March 31, 2016

producing and making the asset ready for its intended use. 

	 The carrying amounts of the assets belonging to each cash generating unit (CGU) are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts and where carrying amounts exceed the 
recoverable amount of the assets belonging to  CGU, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. Further, assets 
held for disposal are stated at the lower of the net book value or the estimated net realizable value.

E.	 Impairment of Fixed Assets
	 At the end of each year, the Company determines whether a provision should be made for impairment loss on fixed assets 

by considering the indication that an impairment loss may have occurred in accordance with Accounting Standard 28 on 
“Impairment of Assets”. Where the recoverable amount of any fixed assets is lower than its carrying amount, a provision for 
impairment loss on fixed assets is made

F.	 Depreciation / Amortisation
	 i.	 With the applicability of Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 1, 2014, depreciation / amortisation is provided 

on the Straight Line Method (SLM) unless otherwise mentioned, pro-rata to the period of use of assets and is based 
on management’s estimate of useful lives of the fixed assets or the useful lives as specified in Part C of Schedule II to 
the Companies Act, 2013, and accordingly the deprecation rates have been taken as follows: 

Description of Asset Rate of Depreciation
Building 1.67%
Computers including Computer Peripherals & Software 33.33%
Office Equipments 20.00%
Furniture & Fixture 10.00%
Motor Car 12.50%
Plant & Machinery 6.67%
Project Assets* 25.00% – 33.33%
Leased Project Assets* 33.33%

		  * The useful lives of these assets have been taken as per estimation of the management since their purchase and 
has been amortised accordingly, which resulted into acceleration of the depreciation at higher rate as compared to 
the depreciation rate given under the Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 (i.e. before the applicability of the 
Companies Act, 2013) and has continued with the earlier useful lives in the current year. 

	
		  As per the provisions of Note 7 of Para C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the carrying amount of the 

existing assets as on April 1, 2014: 

		  - will be depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset as per this Schedule
		  - in cases where the remaining useful life of an asset is nil, the residual value has been transferred to the retained 

earnings.
 
		  Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is provided on prorata basis.

G.	 Investments
	 Investments that are intended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisition, are classified as long term 

investment and are carried at cost less any provision for permanent diminution in value. Investments other than long term 
investments being current investments are valued at cost or fair market value whichever is lower.
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H.	 Valuation of inventories
	 Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

I.	 Lease
	 Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor, are 

recognized as operating leases. The lease agreements contain rent escalation clause. Lease rental expenses including escalations 
for operating leases are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the minimum lease term.

	 Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee, where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the 
present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is recognized for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is 
allocated between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability 
for each year.

J.	 Miscellaneous Expenditure
	 Preliminary expenses are amortised in the year in which they are incurred.

K.	   Foreign Currency Transactions 

	 i)	 The transactions in foreign currencies are stated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transactions.

	 ii)	 The difference on account of fluctuation in the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction and the date of 
realization is charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

	 iii)	 Differences on translations of Current Assets and Current Liabilities remaining unsettled at the year-end are 
recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

L.	   Treatment of Contingent Liabilities
	 Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of notes to accounts. Disputed demands in respect of income tax and other 

proceeding are disclosed as contingent liabilities. Payments in respect of such demands, if any are shown as advances.

M.	 Accounting for Taxation of Income 

	 Current taxes

	 Income Tax is accrued in the same period the related revenue and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax 
annually based on the tax liability computed after considering tax allowances and exemptions. Provisions are recorded 
when it is estimated that a liability due to disallowance or other matters is probable. MAT paid in accordance with the tax 
laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future tax liability, is recognized as an 
asset in the Balance sheet if there is convincing evidence that the group will pay normal tax after the tax holiday period 
and the resultant assets can be measured reliably. The Company offsets, on a year to year basis, the current tax assets and 
liabilities, where it is its legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis

       	    
	 Deferred taxes

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to timing differences that 
result between the profits offered for income taxes and the profits as per the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are measured using the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance 
sheet date. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax and assets or liabilities are recognized in the period that 
includes the enactment date. Deferred tax Assets are recognized only to the extent there is virtual certainty that the assets 
can be realized in the future. Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date.

Notes to Financial Statements
as on March 31, 2016
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N.	 Retirement benefits of the Employee: 
	 The Company has both defined contribution and defined benefit plans of which some have assets in special funds or 

similar securities. The plans are financed by the Company and in case of some defined contribution plans, by the Company 
along with its employees.

	 •	 Gratuity 

		  In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible 
employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment 
with the company. The gratuity fund is managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).  The Company’s 
gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan is provided 
by for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.  
The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses immediately in the profit and loss account.

	 •	 Provident fund, State Insurance, Labour Welfare Fund, Professional Tax 

		  These are the defined contribution plans in which the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds. The 
Company’s contributions to these funds are reported as an expense during the period in which the employees 
perform services that the payment covers.

	 •	 Compensated Absences

		  The employees of the Company are entitled to compensate absence.  The employees can carry forward a portion 
of the unutilized accrued compensated absence and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation at 
retirement at retirement or termination of employment for the unutilized accrued compensated absence. The 
company follows the cash basis of accounting for recording the obligation of leave encashment.  In other words, 
the company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which it has been encashed by the 
employees.

	 •	 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)
		  In respect of employee’s stock options, the excess of market price on the date of grant over the exercise price is 

recognised as deferred employee compensation expense amortised over vesting period.

Notes to Financial Statements
as on March 31, 2016

As per our report of even date attached.

For S. K. Patodia & Associates	 For & on behalf of the Board 			 
Chartered Accountants					   
FRN : 112723W				  

Arun Poddar	 Dinesh Nandwana	 Subhash Singhania
Partner	 Managing Director & CEO	 Chief Financial Officer
Mem. No. 134572	 DIN : 00062532	
		
Place : Mumbai	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar	 Darshi Shah
Date   : May 11, 2016 	 Director 	 Company Secretary
	 DIN : 00062638
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Note 2 - Share Capital
	 	 (` in Lakhs)

(a)  Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016 

 As at  
March 31, 2015                           

 Authorised : 
 75,00,00,000 (Previous Year 75,00,00,000) Equity Shares of  ` 1/- each  7,500.00  7,500.00 

 TOTAL  7,500.00  7,500.00 
 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up : 
 52,91,96,170 (Previous Year 50,34,82,240) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each fully paid up  5,291.96  5,034.82 

 TOTAL  5,291.96   5,034.82  

(b) 	 Detailed note on the terms of the rights, preferences and restrictions relating to each class of shares including 
restrictions on the distribution of dividends and repayment of capital.  		

	  i) 	 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of  ` 1/- per share. Each holder of Equity Share 
is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. During the year ended 
31st March 2016, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to Equity Shareholders is  ` 1.25 per 
share of  ` 1/- each. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

	  ii) 	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
Equity shares held by the shareholders.			 

			 
 (c) 	  Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 No. of shares at the beginning of the year  50,34,82,240  50,34,82,240 
 Add: Issue of Shares during the year 
 Conversion of ESOPs  7,13,930  -   
 Conversion of Share Warrants  2,50,00,000  -   

 2,57,13,930  -   
 No. of shares at the end of the year  52,91,96,170  50,34,82,240 

 (d)	   Aggregate details for five immediately previous reporting periods for each class of shares 

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

  - 	 No. of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment 
being received in cash

 -    -   

  - 	 No. of shares allotted as fully paid by way of Bonus Shares  25,02,39,790 25,02,39,790
  - 	 No. of shares bought back  -    -   
  - 	 No. of shares issued on exercise of options granted under the ESOP scheme.  55,65,910  61,58,940 

				 

 (e) 	  Details of Promoters’ holding more than 5% shares in the company 

 No. of Shares held by  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Nos.                       %  Nos.                       % 

 Vakrangee Holdings Private Limited  12,53,75,194  23.69  12,53,75,194  24.90 
 Dinesh Nandwana  2,97,67,100  5.62  2,97,67,100  5.91 
 Vakrangee Capital Private Limited  6,49,36,220  12.27  3,99,36,220  7.93 

Notes to Financial Statements
as on March 31, 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements
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 (f)	 Detailed note on shares reserved to be issued under options and contracts (ESOPs or Loans) / commitment for the 
sale of shares (without payment being received in cash) divestments including the terms and conditions.

	 The Company has formulated Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2008 (ESOP Scheme) which was approved by the 
members of the Company at their meeting held on 23rd September, 2008, as modified on 10th January, 2011 & on 1st 
June, 2012. Further the Company has formulated the new “ESOP Scheme 2014” approved by the members of the Company 
through postal ballot on 23rd May, 2014. 						    

				 
	 Detail of all the Grants issued as on date & the prices at which the options (after effecting modification, if any) to be 

exercised are as follows:
								     

Grant No. & Date of Grant Option Granted 
No. of options 
(Equity shares  

of Face Value  
` 1/- each)

 Exercise  
Price (`)

Under ESOP Scheme 2008
Grant 1 on July 31, 2009  54,14,000  3.10 
Grant 2 on December 30, 2009  4,12,000  3.39 
Grant 3 on May 18, 2010  31,24,000  7.33 
Grant 4 on November 24, 2010  17,35,000  7.50 
Grant 5 on August 12, 2011  12,97,000  7.50 
Grant 6A on July 20, 2012  11,90,000  20.00 
Grant 6B on July 20, 2012  20,00,000  10.00 
Under ESOP Scheme 2014
Grant 7 on November 26, 2014  10,69,100  64.70 
Grant 8 on March 11, 2016  9,67,200  113.08 

	 The Company has made another change in the ESOP Scheme with respect to the vesting of the options (only those 
forming part of the fresh Grants issued after June 1, 2012) over the period as follows:

	
Period of Vesting from the date of grant Percent to Vest

Grant 1 to 5 Grant 6 onwards
At the end of twelve months 33%  -   
At the end of twenty four months 33% 25%
At the end of thirty six months 34% 25%
At the end of forty eight months  -   25%
At the end of sixty months  -   25%

	 Employees covered under Stock Option Plans are granted an option to purchase shares of the company at the respective 
exercise prices, subject to requirements of vesting conditions. These options generally vest over a period of four years from 
the date of grant for Grants 1 to 5 and six years from the date of grant for Grant 6 onwards. Upon vesting, the employees 
can acquire one equity share for every option. 				  

				 
	 The stock compensation cost is computed under the intrinsic value method and amortized on a straight line basis over the 

total vesting period of four years & six years accordingly. For the year ended March 31, 2016, the company has recorded 
stock compensation expense of `  (-) 134.34 Lakhs (net) (Previous year `  9.12 Lakhs net). During the year, the Company has 
reversed the deferred employee compensation expenses amounting `  519.07 Lakhs (Previous Year ‘ 402.71 Lakhs) towards 
16,51,000 options (Previous year : 55,42,900 options) lapsed out of various Grants.				  
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	 The Remuneration & Compensation committee of the Board evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees 
and approves the grant of options. These options vest with employees over a specified period subject to fulfillment of 
certain conditions. Upon vesting, employees are eligible to apply and secure allotment of Company’s shares at a price 
determined on the date of grant of options.  				  

	 The activity in the ESOP Scheme during the year ended March 2016 is set out as below :

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

 The ESOP Scheme 
 Options outstanding, beginning of the period  34,46,260  79,20,060 
 Add : Granted  9,67,200  10,69,100 
 Less: Exercised  7,13,930  -   
 Less: Lapsed  16,51,000  55,42,900 
 Options outstanding, end of the period  20,48,530  34,46,260 

	
	 The options once granted to an eligible employee gets lapsed with the resignation / termination of the employment with 

the Company. However, the unvested / unexercised portion of the ESOP entitlement to that employee remain part of 
the respective grant out of which it was issued & they can be granted to any other eligible employee as decided by the 
Remuneration & Compensation Committee.

	 Note : The Remuneration & Compensation Committee has been authorised to make amendments in the ESOP Scheme - 
2008 and ESOP Scheme - 2014, with regard to the number of shares for every option granted & the price to be revised, to 
give effect of stock split & bonus issue announced by way of postal ballot during the year.

(g) 	 Detailed terms of any securities convertible into shares, e.g. in the case of convertible warrants, debentures, 
bonds etc.	

	 The Company had issued 250.00 Lakhs fully convertible warrants to M/s. Vakrangee Capital Private Limited at ` 100/- per 
warrant in February, 2014. The warrants issued were convertible into equal no. of equity shares having face value of 

	 ` 1/- with premium of ` 99/- per share. Those warrants have been converted into 250.00 Lakhs fully paid-up equity shares 
of ` 1/- each in August, 2015 i.e. before the expiry of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants. These equity shares 
are subject to lock-in-period of three years from date of allotment of the equity shares or such reduced period as may be 
permitted under the SEBI Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 as amended time to time.

					  
 Note 3 - Reserves & Surplus 						    

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 (i) Securities Premium Account 

 As per last Balance Sheet  16,997.11  16,997.11 
 Add: On shares issued during the year  24,816.69  -   
 Add : Transferred from Shares Options 
outstanding account  

 181.85  -   

 Less: Capitalised on issue of shares  -    -   
 Less: Share issue expenses  -    -   

41995.65  16,997.11 
(ii) a)	 Shares Options Outstanding Account 

 As per last Balance Sheet  1,248.41  959.41 
 Add : On further grant of options  1,065.68  691.71 
 Less: Reversal due to lapsation of options  (519.07)  (402.71)

Notes to Financial Statements
as on March 31, 2016
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 Less: Transferred to Securities Premium 
Account 

 (181.85)  -   

 1,613.17  1,248.41 
 b)	 Deferred Employee Compensation 

Expense 
 As per last Balance Sheet  (669.25)  (389.36)
 Add : On further grant of options  (1,065.68)  (691.71)
 Less: Reversal due to lapsation of options  190.98  -   

 Less : Amortised during the year  193.75  411.82 
 (1,350.20)  (669.25)

(iii) General Reserve 
 As per last Balance Sheet  7,791.68  4,585.95 
 Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account  3,914.71  3,205.73 
 Less: Transferred to Profit and Loss Account  -    -   

 11,706.39  7,791.68 
(iv)  Surplus in the Profit & Loss Account 

 As per last Balance Sheet  67,750.15  43,092.76 
 Add: Profit for the year  39,147.12  32,057.30 

 Amount available for appropriations  1,06,897.27  75,150.06 
 Appropriations: 
 Add: Transferred from reserves  -    -   
 Less : Amounts transferred from block of Fixed 

Assets (net of taxes) (Refer Note I below)
 -   (2646.06)

 Less: Transferred to General Reserve  (3,914.71)  (3,205.73)
           Proposed Dividend  (6,614.95)  (1,258.71)
           Corporate Dividend Tax  (1,346.65)  (251.67)

           Short Provision for Dividend Payable of 
previous year 

 (64.19)  -   

           Short Provision for Dividend Tax Payable 
of previous year 

 (12.83)  (37.75)

 (11,953.33)   94,943.94  (7,399.91)  67,750.15  

 TOTAL  1,48,908.95   93,118.10  

Note I : With the applicability of Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 1, 2014, and as per the provisions of Note 7 of Para 
C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the carrying amount of the existing assets as on April 1, 2014 where the remaining 
useful life of an asset is Nil, the residual value has been transferred to the retained earnings in the previous year. The block-wise 
break up of the amounts transferred are as follows :

Furnitures & Fixtures  82.91 

Office Equipments  222.70 

Computers & Printers  3,702.96 

 4,008.57 

The tax impact amounting to ` 1362.51 lakhs on the above amounts has been reduced from the amounts transferred from block 
of fixed assets. 				  
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Note 4- Money Received against Share Warrant	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

 Warrant Application money -  25,000.00 

TOTAL -  25,000.00 

Note :  				  
The Company had issued 250.00 Lakhs fully convertible warrants to M/s. Vakrangee Capital Private Limited at ` 100/- per warrant 
in February, 2014. The warrants issued were convertible into equal no. of equity shares having face value of ` 1/- with premium of 
` 99/- per share. Those warrants have been converted into 250.00 Lakhs fully paid-up equity shares of ` 1/- each in August, 2015 
i.e. before the expiry of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants. These equity shares are subject to lock-in-period of three 
years from date of allotment of the equity shares or such reduced period as may be permitted under the SEBI Issue of Capital & 
Disclosure Requirements (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 as amended time to time.
				  
Note 5 - Long-Term Borrowings 
	 	  (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 (A)  Secured Loans 
	 (i)	 Term Loans 
        	 - From Banks  1,250.00  3,740.60 
	         - From Others  -    1,250.00  -    3,740.60 

	 (ii) 	 Long-term maturities of finance 
lease obligations 

 -   -

	 (iii) 	 Deposits  -    -   

	 ( A )   1,250.00  3,740.60 

(B)  Unsecured Loans 
	 (i)	 Term Loans 
	         - From Bank  -    -   
	         - From Others  -    -    -    -   

	 (iii) 	 Deposits  -    -   

	 ( B )    -    -   

 TOTAL (A + B)  1,250.00  3,740.60 

(b) 	 Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans.
	  i) 	 Term Loan from Banks : 				  

		  1.	 The Company had taken a term loan of ` 25.00 Crores. Present rate of interest is 11.95% p.a. The loan is to be 
repaid in 16 quarterly installments of ` 1.56 Crore starting from availability-cum-moratorium period of 15 months 
from the date of first disbursement (first instalment payable on 31.05.2015), thereby total tenor of the loan will be 
63 months.

		  2. 	 The Company has taken a term loan in the form of External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs) of USD 10 Million. 
The borrowings are made at an interest rate equal to the sum of LIBOR and the Margin as specified in the Term 
Loan Facility Agreement. The payment of interest to be made quarterly. Present rate of interest is 3.561% p.a. The 
loan is to be repaid in 12 quarterly installments starting from June 30, 2014, with first 11 installments in equal 
amounts & the amount of the last i.e. twelfth installment being the balance of principal pending for repayment, 
thereby total tenor of the loan to be five years.

Notes to Financial Statements
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			   “The Company has entered into a Cross Currency & Interest Rate Swap facility for hedging of the ECB repayments 
(principal and interest). By way of this swap facility, the rate of interest has been fixed at 9.62% p.a. for complete 
tenor of the term loan. The spot reference rate for repayment of the said loan has been fixed at ` 56.08 for 1 USD.  
 
The bank has sanctioned Loan Equivalent Value (LEV) of ` 6.493 Cr under currency swap facility. Negative Mark-
to-Market threshold limit for margin call has been fixed at ` 5.00 Cr.  
 
In case, the net payables exceed the exposure, the Bank has the right to call for additional deposit margin 
forthwith to maintain the exposure within the threshold limit. The Company shall deposit cash collateral as per 
Bank’s instructions, if negative MTM exceeds ` 5.00 Cr.”	

 (c) 	  Nature of security of each type of secured loans.
	  i) 	 Term Loans from Banks (` 25.00 Cr)  : 		

		   1. 	 First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation on micro ATM, Financial Inclusion (FI) kits and assets purchased 
out of the said rupee term loan.				  

		  2. 	 First charge on the designated bank account through which all the revenues and receivables of all the FI centres 
will be routed. 				  

		  3. 	 First charge on the Debt Service Reserve account (DSRA) and any other bank account of the company with 
respect  to proposed FI project. 				  

		  4. 	 Second pari-passu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company.	

 		  5.	 Second pari-passu charge on the movable fixed assets of the company (present & future), except micro ATMs 
and other FI kits.			 

 		  6.	 Second parri-passu charge through mortgage on the office premises of the Company, situated at Marol Co-
Operative Industrial Society & Hind Saurashtra Industries Co-Operative Society Limited, Marol, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai.  				  

 		  7.	 Second pari-passu charge on office premise of Vakrangee Technologies Limited, situated at Marol Co-Operative 
Industrial Society, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai.

		  8.	 Second pari-passu charge on property situated at Deer Park, New Delhi.

		  9.	 9. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEO of the Company & Corporate 
Guarantee of Vakrangee Technologies Limited.  

 						       	
 ii) 	 Term Loans from Banks - External Commercial Borrowings (ECB):

		  1.	 First charge on all moveable and immoveable fixed assets financed out of the term loan, with a minimum asset 
cover ratio of 1.33 times. 				  

		  2. 	 Second parri-passu charge on all assets of the Company excluding those financed through this term loan.

		  3.	 Second pari passu charge on the UID kits procured from existing term loans availed from banks.

 		  4.	 Personal Guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEO of the Company. 

(d)	 Details of the aggregate of each loan guaranteed by directors or others, each head-wise.
	 All the term loans amounting to ` 1,250.00 lakhs (P. Y. ` 3,740.60 lakhs) guaranteed by Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing 

Director & CEO of the Company.  

(e) 	 Details of continuing default in the repayment of loans and interest, specifying the period and amount separately 
in each case.

	 There has been no default in the repayment of loans or interest thereon as on date.
					   

Notes to Financial Statements
as on March 31, 2016

127                          VAKRANGEE LIMITED  
Annual Report 15-16



Note 6 - Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 					  
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Liabilities 
(i)	 On account of difference in depreciation on 

Fixed Assets
 1,294.44  4,249.79 

(ii)	 Provision for Leave Encashment  -    -   
(ii)	 Timing differences on Tax Provisions  -    -   

	 ( A )   1,294.44  4,249.79 
 Assets 
(i)	 Provision for Leave Encashment  20.40  15.39 
(ii)	 Loss on sale of FA  -    -   
(ii)	 Timing differences on Tax Provisions  -    -   

	 ( B )    20.40  15.39 
 TOTAL (A - B)  1,274.04  4,234.40 

Note : In the previous year, the tax impact of ` 1362.51lakhs on the amount of ` 4008.60 lakhs transferred from the block of fixed 
assets to retained earnings (Refer Note 3), as per the provisions of Note 7 of Para C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, 
has been net off from the amounts so transferred to the retained earnings, and has been reduced from the opening deferred tax 
liablities. 				  

 Note 7 - Other Long-Term Liabilities 
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Trade payables  216.62  157.17 
 Others :   -    -   
 TOTAL  216.62  157.17 

 Note 8 - Short-Term Borrowings 
 (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 (A) Secured Loans 
	 (i) 	 Loans repayable on demand 
	 		 - From Banks   28,275.04  29,968.80 

	 (ii)	 Loans & Advances from
			  Related Parties 

 -    -   

	 (iii)	 Inter Corporate Deposits  -    -   

	 ( A )  28,275.04  29,968.80 
 (B) Unsecured Loans 
	 (i)	 Loans & Advances from 
			  Related Parties 

 -    -   

	 (ii)	 Inter Corporate Deposits  -    -   
	 (iii)	 Other Loans & Advances   -    -   

	 ( B )  -    -   

 TOTAL (A + B)  28,275.04  29,968.80 
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(b)  	  Nature of security of each type of secured loans. 				  
	 a) 	 Loans repayable on demand from Banks : 

		  The Company had entered into a Security Trustee Agreement for availing the working capital facilities under the 
consortium banking arrangement and the limit sanctioned is aggregating to ` 750.00 Crores vide agreement dated 
June 5, 2015. Based on the operational requirements, the Company has proposed revision in working capital facilities 
to ` 510.90 Crores and the Lead Bank has assessed the working capital requirements of the Company to that extent 
during the year.				  

		  These facilities are secured against the following charge on various assets of the Company : 

		  1.	 Primary : First pari-passu charge on the entire current assets of the Company, both present & future.

		  2. 	 Collateral :    				  

	   		  -	  First pari-passu charge on the entire movable fixed assets of the Company (excluding UID kits and FI kits 
financed by term loans & assets financed from ECB facility) both present & future.		

  			   - 	  First pari-passu charge on entire lands & office premises of the company & of Vakrangee Technologies 
Limited, situated at Marol Co-Operative Industrial Society & Hind Saurashtra Industries Co-Operative Society 
Limited, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai. 				 

  			   - 	 First Pari passu charge on residential house at Chandigarh.				  

			   - 	 Second pari-passu charge on the UID kits and FI kits purchased from the term loan facilities.	

			   - 	 Second pari-passu charge on the assets financed through ECB facility. 		

		  3. 	 Corporate Guarantee of Company, Vakrangee Technologies Limited.

 		  4.	 Personal Guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEO of the Company.

	
b)	 Loans and advances from Related Parties 				  
	 For details, refer Note 36. 				  
					   
 (c) 	 Details of the aggregate of each loan guaranteed by directors or others, each head-wise.
	 All the loans repayable on demand from banks amounting to ` 28,275.04 Lakhs (P. Y. ` 29,968.80 Lakhs) guaranteed by Mr. 

Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEO of the Company.  
					   
(d)	 Details of continuing default in the repayment of loans and interest, specifying the period and amount separately 

in each case.
	 There has been no default in the repayment of loans or interest thereon as on date.
	
Note 9 - Trade Payables 					   

 (` in Lakhs)
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2016
 As at  

March 31, 2015

Current payables (including acceptances) outstanding for less than 12 months  11,087.88  21,079.56 
TOTAL  11,087.88  21,079.56  

 Note 10 - Other Current Liabilities 	
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

 Current maturities of long-term debts  2,494.33  6,287.61 
 Current maturities of finance lease obligations  -    18.35 
 Interest accrued and due on borrowings  25.28  171.81 
 Unpaid Dividend  30.13  33.82 
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 Other Payables 
 PF, ESIC & LWF Payable  27.31  62.29 
 Service Tax Payable  28.11  45.55 
 Sales Tax Payable  2.51  4.02 
 TDS Payable  39.82  153.43 
 Staff Emoluments Payable  357.05  369.98 
 Security Deposit  6.23  -   
 Advance from customers  170.81  320.53 
 Other Liabilities  43.26  288.49 

 TOTAL  3,224.84  7,755.88 

Note 11 - Short-Term Provisions 
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

 Provision for Expenses for Goods & services  3,646.26  6,697.71 
 Provision for Employees' benefits   185.57  117.85 
 Provision for Wealth Tax  -    0.01 
 Provision for Taxation (net of taxes paid)  642.67  5,328.40 
 Provision for Proposed Dividend  6,614.95  1,258.71 
 Provision for Tax on Proposed Dividend  1,346.65  251.67 
 TOTAL  12,436.10 13,654.35
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Note 13 - Non-Current Investments 
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

(a)  Trade Investments 

(i)	 Investment in Equity Instruments 

 Unquoted Investments 

 -	 In Subsidiary Companies 

	 96,000 Equity Shares of Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc., Philippines of Peso 100/- 
each fully paid up (Previous Year 96,000)

 96.00 96.00

	 2,50,000 Equity Shares of Vakrangee Finserve Ltd. of ` 10/- each fully paid up 
(Previous Year 2,50,000)

 25.00  25.00 

	 ( A )  121.00  121.00  

- 	 In Others

 	 2,500 Equity Shares of CSC e-Governance Services India Ltd. of ` 1000/- each 
fully paid up (Previous Year 2,500)

 25.00 25.00

	 ( B )  25.00 25.00

(ii)	 Investment in Mutual Funds 

24.9375 units of Aditya Birla Real Estate Fund - I 
of ` 1,00,000/- each partly paid up ` 60,000/- per unit  
(Previous Year ` 60,000/- per unit, 24.9375 units) 

15.00 15.00

99,990 units of Union KBC Asset Allocation Fund - Moderate 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year 99,990) 

10.00 10.00 

Nil units of Union KBC Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series 1 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year 2,99,990) 

- 30.00 

Nil units of Union KBC Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series 2 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year 2,00,000) 

-  20.00 

1,00,000 units of Union KBC Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series 5 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year 1,00,000) 

10.00 10.00

4,99,990 units of Union KBC Trigger Fund Series 2 - Regular Plan 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year 4,99,990) 

50.00 50.00

3,35,077.757 units of Union KBC Small & Midcap Fund - Regular Plan 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year Nil) 

39.94 -

	 ( C )  124.94 135.00

TOTAL (A + B + C) 270.94 281.00

 (` in Lakhs)
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2016
 As at  

March 31, 2015
(b) Aggregate value of: 

Quoted investments - Mutual Funds (Market Value : `123.38 lakhs, P.Y. ` 156.19 lakhs)  124.94  135.00 
Unquoted investments   146.00  146.00 

270.94 281.00

Note : During the year, a company, Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited, has been incorporated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
the Company on March 18, 2016. However, the payment towards subscription of 10,00,000 equity shares subscribed as per the 
Memorandum of Association of the newly-formed company amounting to ` 1,00,00,000/- has not been made by the Company 
as at March 31, 2016.
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Note 14 - Long-Term Loans & Advances 
 (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(i)	 Capital Advances 
 	 (Unsecured, considered good) 
 	 Advance against property  383.52  458.52 
 	 Advance against capital goods  716.75  1,100.27  -    458.52 

(ii)	 Security Deposits 
	 (Unsecured, considered good) 
	 Security Deposit  21.79  21.96 
(iii)	Loans & Advances to Related Parties 
	 (Unsecured, considered good) 
	 Dues from subsidiaries  -    -   
	 Dues from associate companies  -    -   
	 Dues from companies in which the 

company's managing director is a director 
 -    -    -    -   

(iv)	Other Loans and Advances  
	 (Unsecured, considered good) 
 	 MAT Credit Entitlement  -   -
 	 Balances with statutory / revenue authorities:  
	 - Income Tax (net of provision for taxation)  -    -   
	 - Sales Tax  -    -    -   -
 TOTAL  1,122.06  480.48 

(b) 	  Details of Loans and Advances to Related Parties
	  For Details refer Note 36. 	
 (c) 	 Detailed note on loans and advances due by the following persons :	  (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

(i) 	 Directors and other officers  -    -   
(ii) 	 Firms in which any director is a partner  -    -   
(iii)	 Private companies in which director is a member/director  -    -   
 TOTAL  -    -   

Note 15 - Other Non-Current Assets 	  (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(i) 	 Long Term Trade Receivables 
	 - Unsecured, considered good  1,009.86  138.36 
 	 - Doubtful  -    -   
	 Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  44.50  44.50 

 965.36  93.86 
(ii) 	 Others 
	 - Non-Current Bank Balances (Note No. 18)  417.15  119.23 
	 - Prepaid Expenses  0.69  1.42 

 417.84  120.65 
 TOTAL  1,383.20  214.51 
	
Note 16 - Inventories 	  (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

(i) 	 Raw Material  45,727.84  12,505.03 
(ii) 	 Work in Progress  -    161.83 
(iii) 	Finished Goods   513.19  465.36 
(iv)	 Consumables  201.57  209.02 
(v) 	 Stores & Spares  4.78  11.35 

 TOTAL   46,447.38 13,352.59
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(b) 	 Basis of valuation of Inventories  				 
	 Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value on FIFO basis which is in accordance with AS 2 as issued by the ICAI.

Note 17 - Trade Receivables 				  
 (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 (i) Due for a period exceeding six months 
  - Unsecured, considered good  7,291.31  14,930.14  
  - Doubtful  -    -   -
 Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  -    -    -    -   

 7,291.31  14,930.14 
 (ii) Others 
  - Unsecured, considered good -  80,416.65 -  1,07,233.95 
  - Doubtful  -    -   
 Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  -    -    -    -   

 80,416.65  1,07,233.95 

 TOTAL  87,707.96  1,22,164.09 

 (b) 	 Detailed note on debts due by the following persons : 
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

(i) 	 Directors and other officers  -    -   
(ii) 	 Firms in which any director is a partner  -    -   
(iii)	 Private companies in which director is a member/director  -    -   

 TOTAL  -    -   

Note 18 - Cash & Cash equivalents 
 (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 (A)  Cash & Cash Equivalents 
	 (i)	 Balances with Banks :  
      		  - Current Accounts  13,872.87  534.02 
 	 (ii) 	 Cash-in-hand  5.33  5.47 
 	 (iii) 	 Cheques & Drafts in-hand  -    -   

 13,878.20  539.49 
 (B)  Other Bank Balances 
 	 (i) 	 Earmarked balances  30.13  33.82 
 	 (ii) 	 Amount held as margin money 

or security against borrowings, 
guarantee, other commitments 

 3,048.64  3,213.01 
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(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 	 (iii) 	 Deposits with Banks :        
		  - with original maturity period of 

more than 3 months but less than 
12   months 

- 10.75

     		  - with original maturity period of 
more than 12 months 

 -    -   

 3,078.77  3,257.58 

 16,956.97  3,797.07 
Less : Non-Current Other Bank Balances, 
disclosed under Other Non-Current Assets 
(Note No. 15)
(i)	 Amount held as margin money or security 

against borrowings, guarantee, other 
commitments 

 417.15  119.24 

(ii) 	 Deposits with Banks :        
     - with original maturity period more than 

12 months 
-    -   

 417.15  119.24 
 TOTAL  16,539.82  3,677.83 

 Note 19 - Short-Term Loans and Advances 
 (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 (i)	 Security Deposits 
 	 (Unsecured, considered good) 
 	 Security Deposit  1,140.19  1,135.69 

(ii) 	Loans and Advances to Related Parties 
 	 (Unsecured, considered good)  -    -   
 	 Dues from subsidiaries  5,161.62  2,913.76 
 	 Dues from associate companies  -    -   
 	 Dues from companies in which the 

company's managing director is a director 
 -    -   

 5,161.62  2,913.76 
(iii) Other Loans and Advances 
 	 (Unsecured, considered good) 
 	 Loans to others  -    -   
 	 Earnest Money Deposit  50.35  130.35 
 	 Balances with statutory / revenue 

authorities :  
     - Sales Tax  23.52  15.71 
     - Income Tax (net of provision for taxation)  209.42  1.31 
     - CENVAT Credit receivable  -     13.09  

 283.29  160.46 
 TOTAL   6,585.10  4,209.91 
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(b) 	  Details of Loans and Advances to Related Parties 	
	  For details, refer Note 36. 	
		
(c) 	  Detailed note on loans and advances due by the following persons : 	

 (` in Lakhs)
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2016
 As at  

March 31, 2015
(i) 	 Directors and other officers  -    -   
(ii) 	 Firms in which any director is a partner  -    -   
(iii)	 Private companies in which director is a member/director  -    -   
 TOTAL  -    -   

Note 20 - Other Current Assets 
 (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
Other advances receivable in cash or kind 
or for value to be received 
 	 Staff Loans  18.53  18.59 
 	 Advances for Expenses  3.38  4.27 
 	 Advances for Purchases  37,549.80  30,366.41 
 	 Other Receivables  1,099.95  575.44 
 	 Prepaid Expenses  56.79  199.02 

 38,728.45  31,163.73 
 TOTAL  38,728.45  31,163.73 

Note 21 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for) 	
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 (A) Contingent Liabilities 
 (i)	 Claims against the company not 

acknowledged as debts 
 27.23 27.23   

(ii) 	 Company has provided Counter Guarantee in 
relation to Bank Guarantee to various parties 
which is not acknowledged in books of 
accounts 

 1,627.97  1,779.60 

 (iii) 	 Other contingent liabilities  -   -
	 ( A )  1,655.20  1,806.83 
 (B) Commitments 
(i) 	 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 

executed on capital account not provided for
-  25.00 

(ii) 	 Uncalled liabilities on share and other 
investments partly paid up 

 10.00  10.00 

(iii) 	  Subscription towards shares of wholly-owned 
subsidiary 

 100.00  -   

(iv)	  Other Commitments - -
	 ( B )  110.00  35.00 
 TOTAL (A + B)  1,765.20  1,841.83 
Note :  					   
 1. 	 The amount of liabilities, which may occur on levying of penalty and/or charges by clients for delays in execution of 

contracts within the time prescribed in the agreement, is unascertained. 					   
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Note 22 - Dividends 					   
 (a) 	 Detailed note on Proposed Equity Dividend and Proposed Preference Dividend for the period and related amount 

per share.
	 The Board of Directors of the Company recommended dividend of ` 1.25 per share on fully paid up equity share of ` 1/- 

each for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016, subject to members approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Note 23 - Revenue from Operations
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(a) Income from e-governance activities  3,15,502.14  2,77,334.15 
(b) Sale of Products 
- Computer consumables & peripherals   64.98  22.25 
- Others  -    -   

 64.98  22.25 
(c) Sale of Services
- Information Technology-Enabled Services (ITES)  1,292.60  171.83 
- Others  0.09  8.51 

 1,292.69  180.34 
(d) Other Operating Revenues
- Commission  -    -   
- Scrap Sale  1.46  0.46 

 1.46  0.46 

TOTAL  3,16,861.27  2,77,537.20 

Note 24 - Other Income
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(i)	 Interest Income on 
	 - Bank Deposits  249.20  264.03 
	 - Others  490.86  406.38 
	 -  Income Tax Refund  -    740.06  -    670.41 

(ii) 	 Dividend Income on 
	 - Investment in Subsidiaries  -    -   
	 - Investment in Other Long-Term Instruments  2.00  2.00 -  -   

(iii) 	Net gain/ (Loss) on sale of Fixed Assets  134.89  18.41 
(iv) 	Net gain on sale of Investments  14.61  66.24 
(v) 	 Gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net)  308.49  197.58 
(vi) 	Other Non-Operating Income (net of expenses 

directly attributable to such income)
	 - Rent Received 	  1.50  1.50 
	 - Sundry Balances written back  1.24  0.15 
	 - Miscellaneous Income  0.21  2.95  2.02  3.67 

TOTAL  1,203.00  956.31 
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Note 25 - Operating Expenses
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

Cost for Sales  
- Opening Stock   12,725.40  12,498.61 
- Add : Purchases during the year  2,61,811.24  2,00,185.40 

 2,74,536.64  2,12,684.01 
- Less : Closing Stock  45,934.19  12,725.40 

 2,28,602.45  1,99,958.61 
 Procurement of Manpower   60.63  219.76 
 Project Expenses  843.23  1,139.09 
 Image Processing Expenses  -    121.80 
 Commission Expenses  1,099.74  189.14 
 Printing Charges  24.80  15.77 
 Communication Costs  64.02  169.99 
 Conveyance & Travelling Expenses  42.63  33.21 
 Transportation, Octroi and Loading / Unloading 
Charges 

 7.08  16.02 

 Rent, Rates and Taxes  45.25  44.76 
TOTAL  2,30,789.82  2,01,908.15 

Note 26 - Changes in Inventories
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(a) At the beginning of the period
(i)	 Finished Goods  465.36  508.31 
(ii) 	 Work-in-Progress  161.83  53.59 

 627.19  561.90 
Less : (b) At the end of the period
(i)	 Finished Goods  513.20  465.36 
(ii)	 Work-in-Progress  -    161.83 

 513.19  627.19 
TOTAL  113.99  (65.29)

Note 27 - Employee Benefits Expenses	
 (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(i)	 Salaries & Wages  2,451.07  1,802.47 
(ii)	 Contribution to Provident & Other Funds  152.50  99.85 
(iii)	 Employee Compensation Expenses  (134.34)  9.12 
(iv)	 Staff Welfare Expenses  66.57  45.97 
TOTAL  2,535.80  1,957.41 
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(b) 	 Detailed note on disclosure as required by AS-15
	 For details, refer Note No. 37.

Note 28 - Finance Costs
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

 Interest Expenses 
    - Banks   5,290.75  6,631.65 
    - Others  139.85  5,430.60  135.53  6,767.18 
 Bank Charges & Commission  161.65  724.71 
TOTAL  5,592.25  7,491.91 

Note 29 - Other Expenses
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

 Repairs & Maintenance :
    - Building  51.64  39.75 
    - Vehicle  1.98  1.85 
    - Others  36.13  89.75  29.07  70.67 
 Advertisement and Publicity Expenses  244.30  191.33 
 Business Promotion Expenses  85.61  78.46 
 Sponsorship Fees  28.73  46.34 
 Commission & Brokerage  0.65  0.98 
 Rates & Taxes  63.72  62.82 
 Insurance  17.57  24.18 
 Electricity Expenses  44.29  36.17 
 Printing and Stationery  35.53  25.71 
 Communication Costs  109.37  96.74 
 Fees & Subscriptions  32.48  26.59 
 Listing, Registrar & Share Issue/Transfer Expenses  5.04  27.60 
 Directors' Remuneration  95.85  82.14 
 Directors' Sitting Fees  6.70  3.87 
  Legal & Professional Fees - Other than payments to  

Auditor :  
     - Consultancy Charges  73.16  176.91 
     - Legal & Professional Fees  649.17  471.15 
     - Filing Stamp Duty and Franking Charges  13.81  23.69 
     - Registration charges  0.73  736.87  0.01  671.76 
 Payments to Auditors :   
     - Audit fees  21.00  14.04 
     - Tax Audit fees  4.00  2.81 
     - For Other Services   5.52  3.31 
     - For Reimbursement of Expenses  0.20  30.72  -    20.16 
 Conveyance & Travelling  127.72  86.63 
 Vehicle Expenses  6.55  6.65 
 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure  420.73  321.25 
 Office & General Expenses  54.76  35.71 
 Donation  -    32.00 
 Miscellaneous Expenses  4.15  8.55 
Total  2,241.09  1,956.30 
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Note 30 - Earnings Per Equity Share
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(a) Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for
Basic EPS  39,147.12 32,057.30
Add/Less: Adjustment relating to potential equity shares  -    -   

Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for  39,147.12 32,057.30
Diluted EPS

(b) Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding during the year
For Basic EPS  51,98,24,565  50,34,82,240 
For Diluted EPS  53,04,24,580  53,11,03,578 

(c) Face Value per Equity Share (`)  1.00  1.00 
Basic EPS  7.53  6.37 
Diluted EPS  7.38  6.04 

(d) Reconciliation between no. of shares used for calculating
basic and diluted EPS
No. of shares used for calculating Basic EPS  51,98,24,565  50,34,82,240 
Add: Potential equity shares  1,06,00,014  2,76,21,338 

No. of shares used for calculating Diluted EPS  53,04,24,580  53,11,03,578 

Note 31 - Prior Period Items
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(a) Prior Period Expenses
Purchases  0.45  26.97 
Repiar & Maintenance  1.74  2.91 
Professional Fees  -    0.84 
Salary & Wages  1.07  1.00 
Rent  1.64  -   
Communication Costs  0.03  -   
TOTAL  4.93  31.72 

(b) Prior Period Incomes
Other Income  -    0.02 
TOTAL - 0.02

Note 32 - Value of Raw Materials, Spare Parts and Components Consumed
Since the Company is engaged in providing e-governance related services, the quantitative details with respect to Opening 
Stock, Purchases, Sales and Closing Stock are not applicable to the Company and hence not given.
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Note 33 - Earnings & Expenditure in Foreign Currency
(a)	 Earnings in Foreign Currency	

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

FOB Value of Exports  -    -   

Interest on loan to subsidiary  485.11  395.47 

TOTAL  485.11  395.47

(b)	 Expenditure in Foreign Currency
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2016

 As at  
March 31, 2015

Travelling Expenses  15.70  20.33 

Interest on ECB  127.19  191.48 

Professional and Consultation Fees  20.31  119.09 

TOTAL  163.20  330.90 

Note 34 - CIF Value of Imports
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

In respect of :
(i)	 Raw Materials  -    -   
(ii)	 Components and Spare parts  -    -   
(iii)	 Capital Goods  -    -   

TOTAL  -    -   

Note 35 - Loans and Advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries and associates as required to be disclosed in 
the annual accounts of the company pursuant to clause 32 of the listing agreement is as under :		
(i) 	 Details of loans to subsidiaries 

 (` in Lakhs)

 Name of Subsidiaries  2015-2016  2014-2015
 Amount  Max. Amount  Amount  Max. Amount 

 Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc.
(Purpose of loan is to provide financial assisstance to 
the subsidiary company)

 3,581.67  3,581.67  2,913.76  2,913.76 

Vakrangee Finserve Limited
(Purpose of loan is to provide financial assisstance to 
the subsidiary company)

 1,579.94  1,579.94  -    38.92 
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(ii) 	 Details of Investment in Subsidiaries 
 (` in Lakhs)

 Name of Subsidiaries    No. of Shares as 
at year-end

 % of 
shareholding

 Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc.  96,000 100.00%
 Vakrangee Finserve Limited  2,50,000 100.00%

Note : During the year, a company, Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited, has been incorporated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
the Company on March 18, 2016. However, the payment towards subscription of 10,00,000 equity shares subscribed as 
per the Memorandum of Association of the newly-formed company amounting to ` 100.00 lakhs has not been made by 
the Company as at March 31, 2016. Accordingly, the amounts paid during the year for incorporation and other expenses 
amounting to `9.54 Lakhs by the Company and recoverable from Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited has not been 
coverred above.

Note 36 - Related Party Details
(a)	 Key Management Personnel 				  
	 Mr. Dinesh Nandwana 		  Managing Director & CEO (Chairman & Managing Director upto 26.07.2015)
 	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar 	 Whole-Time Director
 	 Mr. Ramesh Mulchand Joshi 	 Director
 	 Mr. Sunil Agarwal 		  Director
 	 Mr. Babulal Meena 		  Director
 	 Ms. Darshi Shah 		  Company Secretary
					   
(b)	  Relative of key management personnel and Name of the enterprises having same key management personnel and/ 

or their relatives as the reporting enterprises with whom the Company has entered into transactions during the year 
	  Vakrangee Lacteus & Hortus Limited 
 	  Vakrangee Capital Private Limited 
 	  Vakrangee Technologies Limited  
 	  Mr. Manoj Nandwana  
					   
(c)	 Subsidiary Companies with whom the Company has entered into transactions during the year		

 Name of Subsidiaries Country of 
incorporation

Holding as at
March 31,2016 March 31,2015

  Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. Phillipines 100.00% 100.00%
  Vakrangee Finserve Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%

Note : During the year, a company, Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited, has been incorporated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
the Company on March 18, 2016. However, the payment towards subscription of 10,00,000 equity shares subscribed as 
per the Memorandum of Association of the newly-formed company amounting to ` 100.00 Lakhs has not been made by 
the Company as at March 31, 2016. Accordingly, the amounts paid during the year for incorporation and other expenses 
amounting to ` 9.54 Lakhs by the Company and recoverable from Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited has not been 
covered below. 				  

	 Related Party Transactions 
	 - In relation to (a) 	  (` in Lakhs)

 Nature of Transactions For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

Director Remuneration  95.85  82.14 
ESOP Perquisites  2.85  -   
Directors' Sitting Fees  6.70  3.87 
Employee Benefits Expenses  5.92  4.90 
Balance outstanding as on 31 March  NIL  NIL 
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	 - In relation to (b) 	  (` in Lakhs) 

 Nature of Transactions For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

Reimbursement of Expenses  17.29  14.15 
Salary Paid  5.05  5.10 
Realisation from Debtors  -    72.13 
Warrant Application Money Received  -    14,784.95 
Conversion of Warrants into Equity Shares  25,000.00  -   
Balance Outstanding as on 31 March:
Warrant Application Money Received -  25,000.00

	 - In relation to (c) 	  (` in Lakhs)

 Nature of Transactions For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2014

Realisation from Debtors  57.64  -   
Loans granted  2,053.50  205.64 
Interest received on loan granted  488.09  398.26 
Loan Received back  476.53  123.40 
Balance Outstanding as on 31 March:
Sundry Debtors (including foreign exchange 
fluctuation as at year end)

 2,594.97  2,501.20 

Short - Term Loans and Advances  5,161.62  2,913.76 

Note 37 - Gratuity & Leave encashment
The Company has provided for Gratuity and leave encashment, in accordance with revised AS-15, “Employee Benefits”, the 
company has provided the liability on actuarial basis.

a) Gratuity					   
Actuarial assumptions: 					   
 	  (` in Lakhs)

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Mortality Table (LIC)  2006-08 (Ultimate)  1994-96 (Ultimate) 
 Withdrawal  Rate    1% to 3% depending 

on age 
 1% to 3% depending 

on age 
 Discount rate  8% per annum  8% per annum 
 Salary Escalation 5% 5%
The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factor, such as demand and supply in employment market.
					  
Amount recognized in the Profit and Loss account							     

 (` in Lakhs)

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 PV of Past Service Benefit  132.77  104.59 
 Current Service Cost   45.17  35.13 
 Actuarial (gains)/losses for the period  57.64  76.56 
 Obligation at the end of the year.  218.55  178.83 
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b) Leave encashment
Actuarial assumptions: 					   

 (` in Lakhs)
 Particulars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

 Period From 1st April, 2015 to 
31st March, 2016

From 1st April, 2014 to 
31st March, 2015

 Discount rate 8.00% per annum 8.00% per annum
 Salary growth rate 5.00% per annum 5.00% per annum
 Mortality  IALM 2006-08 

Ultimate
IALM 2006-08 

Ultimate
 Expected rate of return  -    -   
 Withdrawal rate (per annum) 2.00 % per annum (18 

- 60 years)
2.00 % per annum (18 

- 60 years)

Amount recognized in the Profit and Loss account
 (` in Lakhs)

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Current Liability  2.78  1.78 
 Non current liability  56.17  43.50 
 Total  58.95  45.28 

Note 38 - Segment Reporting					  
The Company’s activities predominantly revolve around providing the e-governance related activites of Mission Mode Projects covered 
under “National e-Governance Plan” (NeGP). Considering the nature of Company’s business and operations, there is only one reportable 
segment (business and / or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standard 17 – “Segment Reporting” 
notified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006. However, on the basis of delivery modes, the Company’s business operations 
has been classified into two business segments, viz. e-Governance Projects and Vakrangee Kendra. 

Revenue and identifiable operating expenses in relation to these segments are categorised based on items that are individually identifiable 
to those segments. Certain expenses such as depreciation, which form a significant component of total expenses, are not specifically 
allocable to specific segments as the underlying assets are used interchangeably to utilise the resources optimally. The management 
believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating to those costs and expenses, and accordingly these expenses are 
separately disclosed as ‘unallocated’ and adjusted against the total income of the Company. Fixed assets or liabilities contracted have not 
been identified to any of the segments as the fixed assets and services are used interchangeably between segments. Accordingly, no 
disclosure relating to total segment assets and liabilities are made. 

(` in Lakhs)
 Particulars e-Governance 

Projects
Vakrangee  

Kendra
Total

Revenue from Operations  1,48,181.02  1,68,680.25  3,16,861.27 
 (1,58,700.00)  (1,18,837.20)  (2,77,537.20)

Segmental Results (Profit before Depreciation,  
Interest and Tax)

 40,808.10  40,372.45  81,180.56 

 (35,848.51)  (35,932.12)  (71,780.63)
Less : 
Depreciation  16,353.35 

 (16,434.59)
Finance Costs  5,592.25 

 (7,491.91)
Unallocable expenses (net of unallocable income)  (1,203.00)

 (956.31)
Profit before exceptional and extra-ordinary item  60,437.97 

 (48,810.45)
Less : Exceptional and extra-ordinary item  -   
Profit Before Tax  60,437.97 
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(` in Lakhs)
 Particulars e-Governance 

Projects
Vakrangee  

Kendra
Total

 (48,810.45)
Less : Tax Expense  21,290.84 

 (16,753.14)
Profit After Tax  39,147.12 

 (32,057.30)

Note : Figures in brackets pertains to previous year. 
		
Note 39 - Leases					     	
Finance Leases					   
The Company has taken Computer Equipments & other Fixed Assets on finance lease. Future minimum lease payments & present 
value of minimum lease payments towards the finance lease are as below : 

 (` in Lakhs)
 Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015

 i)	 Minimum lease payments 
	 Not later than one year -  18.56 
	 Later than one year and not later than five years -  -   
	 Total -                                   18.56 
ii)	 Present value of minimum lease payments 
	 Not later than one year -  18.35 
	 Later than one year and not later than five years - -

-  18.35 
	 Add : Future finance charges  -  0.21 
 Total  -  18.56 

Note 40 - Amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:
The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers under the The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development 
Act 2006 and therefore disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable as 
required under the said Act have not been given.

Note 41 - Previous year figures
The figures of the previous year have been re-arranged, re-grouped and re- classified wherever necessary.		
	
As per our report of even date attached.

For S. K. Patodia & Associates	 For & on behalf of the Board 			 
Chartered Accountants					   
FRN : 112723W				  

Arun Poddar	 Dinesh Nandwana	 Subhash Singhania
Partner	 Managing Director & CEO	 Chief Financial Officer
Mem. No. 134572	 DIN : 00062532	
		
Place : Mumbai	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar	 Darshi Shah
Date   : May 11,  2015	 Director 	 Company Secretary
	 DIN : 00062638
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Vakrangee Limited, 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
1.	 We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial 

statements of Vakrangee Limited, the parent (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Holding Company’) and its wholly owned 
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘the ‘Group’), which 
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
“the consolidated financial statements”), which we have 
signed under reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
2.	 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible 

for the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash 
flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 and Accounting Standard 30, Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent it does 
not contradict any other accounting standard referred to 
in Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the Group are responsible 
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of 
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account 
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 

standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder.

4.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5.	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding 
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements.

6.		 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion
7.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements give the 
information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 
2016, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters
8.	 We did not audit the financial statements / financial 

information of one subsidiary, whose financial statements 
reflect total assets of ` 6,702.03 lakhs as at March 31, 2016, 
total revenues of ` Nil and net cash flows amounting to 
` Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in 
the consolidated financial statements. These financial 
statements / financial information are unaudited and have 
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been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect 
of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections 
(3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to 
the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited 
financial statements / financial information. In our opinion 
and according to the information and explanations given to 
us by the Management, this financial statements / financial 
information are not material to the Group.

9.	 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and 
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters 
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the 
financial statements / financial information certified by the 
Management.

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
10.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the 

extent applicable, that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

	 (c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements;

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
and Accounting Standard 30, Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent it 
does not contradict any other accounting standard 
referred to in Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
March 31, 2016 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India, none of the directors 

of the Group companies incorporated in India 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2016 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of 
the Act;

	 (f )	 With respect to adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Group and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in Annexure A

	 (g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

	 (i)	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the 
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 
financial position of the Group – Refer Note 29 to the 
consolidated financial statements;

	 (ii)	 The Group has long-term contracts other than 
derivative contracts as at March 31,2016 for which 
there were no material foreseeable losses;

	 (iii)	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, during 
the year ended March 31, 2016 and there were no 
amounts which were required to be transferred by 
the subsidiary company.

For S. K. Patodia & Associates  
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 112723W
	

	
Arun Poddar  
Partner
Mem. No. : 134572

Place  :  Mumbai	
Date   :  May 11, 2016
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
1.	 In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated 

financial statements of the Company as of and for 
the year ended March 31, 2016, we have audited the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
Vakrangee Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are 
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
2.	 The respective Board of Directors of the Holding 

company, its subsidiary companies, which are 
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation, and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls which were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

Group’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) and the Standards on 
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with the 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

 

4.	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial control system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
operating and understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exist, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the 
financial statement, whether due to fraud or error.

5.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
and the representation received from the management 
for the entities un-audited referred to in the Other 
matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

6.	 A company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles. A company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that : 

	 i.	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable details, accurate and fairly reflect the 
transaction and dispositions of the assets of the 
company;

	 ii. 	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with the 
generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of 
the company; and

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

	 iii. 	 provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or dispositions of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting
7.	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future period are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion
8.	 In our opinion, the holding company, its subsidiary 

companies, which are companies incorporated in India, 
have, in all material respect, and adequate internal 
financial control system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India as it appears from our examination 
of the books and records of the Holding Company and 
the representation received from the management for 
the entities unaudited.

Other Matters
9.	 Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the 

Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
insofar as it relates to the un-audited one subsidiary 
company is based on the representation received from 
the management (also refer para 8 of the Independent 
Auditor’s Report above). Our opinion is not qualified in 
respect of this matter.

For S. K. Patodia & Associates  
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 112723W
	

	
Arun Poddar  
Partner
Mem. No. : 134572

Place  :  Mumbai	
Date   :  May 11, 2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2016

 (` in Lakhs)
Particulars Note  

No.
  As at 

March 31, 2016
  As at 

March 31, 2015
I Equity & Liabilities

1.	 Shareholders' funds
	 (a)	 Share Capital 2  5,291.96  5,034.82 
	 (b)	 Reserves and Surplus 3  1,46,817.74  90,698.88 
	 (c)	 Money received against share 

warrants
4

-  25,000.00 
 1,52,109.70   1,20,733.70  

2.	 Non - Current Liabilities
	 (a)	 Long -Term Borrowings 5  1,250.00  3,740.60 
	 (b)	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6  1,285.37  4,253.08 
	 (c)	 Other Long - Term Liabilities 7  216.62  157.17 

 2,751.99   8,150.85  

3.	 Current Liabilities
	 (a)	 Short - Term Borrowings 8  28,275.04  31,557.40 
	 (b)	 Trade Payables 9  11,435.69  21,313.21 
	 (c)	 Other Current Liabilities 10  3,990.23  8,303.07 
	 (d)	 Short - Term Provisions 11  12,445.16  13,665.41 

 56,146.12   74,839.09  
TOTAL  2,11,007.81   2,03,723.64  

II Assets
1.	 Non - Current Assets
	 (a)	 Fixed Assets 12
		  (i)	 Tangible Assets  13,222.21  27,283.07 
		  (ii)	 Intangible Assets  -    -   
		  (iii)	Capital Work-in-Progress  -    1,009.11 
	 (b)	 Non - Current Investments 13  149.94  160.00 
	 (c)	 Long - Term Loans and Advances 14  1,188.94  493.35 
	 (d)	 Other Non - Current Assets 15  1,719.79  548.42 

 16,280.88   29,493.96  
2.	 Current Assets
	 (a)	 Inventories 16  50,705.70  16,936.28 
	 (b)	 Trade Receivables 17  85,785.22  1,19,932.40 
	 (c)	 Cash and Cash equivalents 18  16,734.37  3,820.48 
	 (d)	 Short - Term Loans and Advances 19  1,765.97  1,579.34 
	 (e)	 Other Current Assets 20  38,741.69  31,165.49 

 1,93,732.95   1,73,433.98  
3.	 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  993.98   795.70  
TOTAL   2,11,007.81  2,03,723.64  

As per our report of even date 
				  
For S. K. Patodia & Associates	 For & on behalf of the Board 			 
Chartered Accountants					   
FRN : 112723W				  

Arun Poddar	 Dinesh Nandwana	 Subhash Singhania
Partner	 Managing Director & CEO	 Chief Financial Officer 
Mem. No. 134572	 DIN : 00062532	
		
Place : Mumbai	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar	 Darshi Shah
Date   : May 11, 2016	 Director 	 Company Secretary
	 DIN : 00062638
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2016

 (` in Lakhs)
Particulars Note  

No.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2016
For the year ended 

March 31, 2015
I Revenue from Operations 21  3,19,073.66   2,78,047.93  
II Other Income 22  564.01   591.18  
III Total Revenue (I + II)  3,19,637.67   2,78,639.11  
IV Expenses

Operating Expenses 23  2,32,645.08  2,02,264.03 
Changes in Inventories 24  (560.63)  (460.95)
Employee Benefits Expenses 25  2,536.15  1,959.23 
Finance Costs 26  5,603.72  7,494.76 
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 12  16,404.30  16,485.61 
Other Expenses 27  2,250.44  1,963.67 
Total Expense  2,58,879.04   2,29,706.35  

V Profit before Exceptional and 
Extraordinary Items and Tax (III-IV)  60,758.63   48,932.76  

VI Exceptional Items  -    -   
VII Profit before Extraordinary Items 

and Tax (V-VI)  60,758.63   48,932.76  
VIII Extraordinary Items  -   
IX Profit Before Tax (VII-VIII)  60,758.63   48,932.76  
X Tax Expense:

(a)	 Current Tax  24,129.53  18,260.89 
(b)	 Deferred Tax  (2,967.70)  (1,500.33)
(c)	 Tax of Earlier Year  176.29  0.78 
(d)	 MAT Credit Entitlement  (54.62)  (12.87)

 21,283.50   16,748.47  
XI Profit for the Period from 

Continuing Operations (IX-X)  39,475.13   32,184.29  
XII Profit/(Loss) for the Period from 

Discontinuing Operations  -    -   
XIII Tax Expense of Discontinuing Operations  -    -   
XIV Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing 

Operations (After Tax) (XII-XIII) - -
XV Minorty Interest -
XVI Profit for the Period (XI + XIV-XV)  39,475.13    32,184.29  
XVI No. of equity shares for computing EPS

(1)	 Basic  51,98,24,565  50,34,82,240 
(2)	 Diluted  53,04,24,580  53,11,03,578 

XVII Earnings Per Equity Share (Face 
Value ` 1/- Per Share): 30
(1)	 Basic (`)  7.59  6.39 
(2)	 Diluted (`)  7.44  6.06 

As per our report of even date 
				  
For S. K. Patodia & Associates	 For & on behalf of the Board 			 
Chartered Accountants					   
FRN : 112723W				  

Arun Poddar	 Dinesh Nandwana	 Subhash Singhania
Partner	 Managing Director & CEO	 Chief Financial Officer 
Mem. No. 134572	 DIN : 00062532	
		
Place : Mumbai	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar	 Darshi Shah
Date   : May 11, 2016	 Director 	 Company Secretary
	 DIN : 00062638
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31 March 2016

 (` in Lakhs)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars  For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2016 

 For the 
year ended 

March 31, 2015
I Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations  60,758.63  48,932.76 
Profit before tax from discontinuing operations  -    -   
Profit before tax  60,758.63  48,932.76 
Non-cash  adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation/ amortization on continuing operation  16,404.30  16,485.61 
Depreciation/ amortization on discontinuing operation  -    -   
Loss/(profit) on sale of fixed assets  (134.89)  (18.41)
Employee  stock compensation expense  (134.34)  9.12 
Net gain on sale of non-current investments  (14.62)  (66.23)
Net gain on disposal of Subsidiary  -    -   

Interest expense  5,439.74  6,768.73 
Interest income  (283.87)  (305.28)
Dividend income  (2.00)  -   
Operating profit before working capital changes  82,032.95  71,806.30 
Movements in working capital : 
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables  (9,877.52)  (3,929.94)
Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions  (2,985.74)  (1,206.07)
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities  (4,312.84)  (1,962.51)
Increase / (decrease) in other long-term liabilities  59.45  (174.89)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables  34,147.18  (43,102.57)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories  (33,769.43)  (687.74)
Decrease / (increase) in long-term loans and advances  (641.59)  5,050.22 
Decrease / (increase) in short-term loans and advances  93.63  (69.78)
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets  (7,576.20)  (11,964.00)
Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets  (1,171.37)  350.75 
Cash generated from /(used in) operations  55,998.52  14,109.77 
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (29,271.21)  (14,219.50)
Net cash flow from / used in operating activities (A)  26,727.31  (109.73)

II Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including intangible assets, CWIP and capital  advances  (1,335.55)  (436.11)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  136.13  121.17 
Decrease in liability of minority interests  -    -   
Proceeds on disposal of Subsidiary  -    -   
Proceeds of non-current investments  64.61  236.24 
Purchase of non-current investments  (39.94)  (75.00)
Interest received  283.87  305.28 
Dividends received  2.00  -   
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  (198.28)  (175.87)

  Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B)  (1,087.16)  (24.29)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31 March 2016

 (` in Lakhs)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars  For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2016 

 For the 
year ended 

March 31, 2015
III Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital  7.14  -   
Proceeds from Warrant & Share Application Money  -    14,784.95 
Proceeds from securities premium on issuance of share capital  66.69  -   
Proceeds from long-term borrowings  (2,490.60)  (4,880.42)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings  (3,282.35)  (605.22)
Interest paid  (5,439.74)  (6,768.73)
Dividends paid on equity shares  (1,322.89)  (1,258.71)
Tax on equity dividend paid  (264.50)  (251.67)
Net cash flow from/(used in) in financing  activities (C)  (12,726.25)  1,020.20 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)  12,913.89  886.19 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  3,820.48  2,934.29 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  16,734.37  3,820.48 

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  7.10  6.64 
Cheques/ drafts on hand  -    -   
With banks - on current account  14,051.34  675.49 
                       on deposit account  2,645.80  3,104.53 
                      unpaid dividend accounts*  30.13  33.82 
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 18)  16,734.37  3,820.48 

* The company can utilize these balances only toward settlement of the respective unpaid dividend.

For S. K. Patodia & Associates	 For & on behalf of the Board 			 
Chartered Accountants					   
FRN : 112723W				  

Arun Poddar	 Dinesh Nandwana	 Subhash Singhania
Partner	 Managing Director & CEO	 Chief Financial Officer 
Mem. No. 134572	 DIN : 00062532	
		
Place : Mumbai	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar	 Darshi Shah
Date   : May 11, 2016	 Director 	 Company Secretary
	 DIN : 00062638
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(1)	 General Information
	 Vakrangee Limited (‘‘the Company’’) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated in May 1990 under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange in 
India. 

	
	 Vakrangee Limited along with its subsidiaries, Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. (Philippines), Vakrangee Finserve Ltd. provides 

diverse solutions, activities in e-governance sector with special competencies in handling massive, multi-state, and 
e-governance enrollment projects and software and IT solutions, Data Digitization, etc.

(2)	 Significant Accounting Policies
A.	 Basis of Consolidation:
	 a.	 The consolidated financial statements relate to Vakrangee Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary companies. The 	

	 consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

	 i.	 The Consolidated financial results comprise of the results of Vakrangee Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Company” and its subsidiaries, Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc., Philippines and Vakrangee Finserve Limited which are 
consolidated in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 on “Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

	 ii.	 Investment in Associate Company has been accounted under the equity method as per Accounting Standard (AS) 23 
“Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”, whereby the investment is initially 
recorded at cost, identifying any goodwill/capital reserve arising at the time of acquisition. The carrying amount of 
the investment is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Company’s share of net assets of the 
Associate Company.

	 iii. 	 In case of foreign subsidiaries, being Non-Integral Foreign Operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average 
rate prevailing during the year. All asset and liabilities are converted at the rate prevailing at the end of the year. Any 
exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognized in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve. In case of 
Integral Foreign Operations, the foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on 
the date of the transaction or at an average rate that approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated into the reporting currency at the exchange rates in 
effect at the balance sheet date and non-monetary items are translated at rates of exchange in effect when the assets 
were acquired or obligations incurred. The resultant exchange gain / loss have been included in Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

	 iv.	 The Financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding 
together the balances of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure after fully eliminating the intra-group 
transactions resulting in the unrealized profit or loss.

	 v.	 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions 
and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the 
Company’s separate financial statements.

	 vi.	 The excess of cost to the company of its investments in the subsidiaries over its portion of equity of subsidiaries at 
the dates they become subsidiaries is 	recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill. When the cost to the 
parent 	 of its investment in subsidiaries is less than the parent’s portion of equity, the difference is recognized in the 
financial statements as Capital reserve. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
as on March 31, 2016
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
as on March 31, 2016

	 b.	 The Subsidiary companies considered in the consolidated financial statements are: 

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Company Country of Incorporation % voting power held as at 
March 31, 2016

1 Vakrangee Finserve Limited India 100%
2 Vakrangee E-Solutions INC Philippines 100%

B.	 Basis of Accounting  
	 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared  to comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in the Companies 

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 notified by the Central Government in exercise of the power conferred under sub-section (1) (a) 
of section 642 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in 
respect of section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and Accounting Standard–30 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent it does not contradict any other accounting 
standard referred to in section 133 of the Act. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the 
historical cost convention on accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company unless otherwise 
stated.

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services and the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle 
as 12 months for the purpose of current – non current classification of assets and liabilities.

C.	 Use of Estimates 
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and 

assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in 
the period in which the results are known / materialised.

 
D.	 Recognition of Income & Expenditure
	 Revenue is recognized when it is earned and no significant uncertainty exists as to its realisation or collection. The Company 

recognizes revenue when the significant terms of the arrangement are enforceable, services have been delivered and the collectability 
is reasonably assured. The method of recognizing the revenues and costs depends on the nature of the services rendered.

	
	 The Company follow the accrual basis of accounting except in the following cases, where the same are recorded on cash basis on 

ascertainment of right and obligation:
.
	 i.	 Insurance Claim, if any
	 ii.	 Dividend Income

E.	 Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets
	 Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all expenditure necessary to 

bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Own manufactured assets are capitalized inclusive of all direct costs and 
attributable overheads. Capital work-in-progress comprises of advances paid to acquire fixed assets and the cost of fixed assets that are 
not yet ready for their intended use as at the balance sheet date. In the case of new undertaking, preoperative expenses are capitalized 
upto the commencement of commercial production.
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	 Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for their acquisition. Cost of an internally generated asset comprises all 
expenditure that can be directly attributed, or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis, to creating, producing and making the 
asset ready for its intended use. 

	 The carrying amounts of the assets belonging to each cash generating unit (CGU) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess 
whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts and where carrying amounts exceed the recoverable amount of 
the assets CGU, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. Further, assets held for disposal are stated at the lower of the net 
book value or the estimated net realizable value.

F.	 Impairment of Fixed Assets
	 At the end of each year, the Company determines whether a provision should be made for impairment loss on fixed assets by 

considering the indication that an impairment loss may have occurred in accordance with Accounting Standard 28 on “Impairment of 
Assets”. Where the recoverable amount of any fixed assets is lower than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment loss on fixed 
assets is made.

G.	 Depreciation / Amortisation
	 With the applicability of Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 1, 2014, depreciation / amortisation is provided on the Straight 

Line Method (SLM) unless otherwise mentioned, pro-rata to the period of use of assets and is based on management’s estimate of 
useful lives of the fixed assets or the useful lives as specified in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, and accordingly the 
deprecation rates have been taken as follows: 

  Description of Asset Rate of Depreciation
Building 1.67%
Computers including Computer Peripherals & Software 33.33%
Office Equipments 20.00%
Furniture & Fixture 10.00%
Motor Car 12.50%
Plant & Machinery 6.67%
Project Assets* 25.00% – 33.33%
Leased Project Assets* 33.33%

	
	 * The useful lives of these assets have been taken as per estimation of the management since their purchase and has been amortised 

accordingly, which resulted into acceleration of the depreciation at higher rate as compared to the depreciation rate given under the 
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 (i.e. before the applicability of the Companies Act, 2013) and has continued with the earlier 
useful lives in the current year. 

 
	 As per the provisions of Note 7 of Para C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the carrying amount of the existing assets as on 

April 1, 2014: 
	 - will be depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset as per this Schedule
	 - in cases where the remaining useful life of an asset is nil, the residual value has been transferred     to the retained earnings.

	  Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is provided on pro rata basis.

H.	 Investments
	 Investments that are intended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisition, are classified as long term investment and 

are carried at cost less any provision for permanent diminution in value. Investments other than long term investments being current 
investments are valued at cost or fair value whichever is lower.
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I.	 Valuation of inventories
	  Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

J.	 Lease
	 Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor, are recognized as 

Operating leases. The lease agreements contain rent escalation clause. Lease rental expenses including escalations for operating leases 
are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account on a Straight-Line basis over the minimum lease term.

	 Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee, where the company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the present value of the 
minimum lease payments and a liability is recognized fr an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability 
and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year.

K.	  Miscellaneous Expenditure
	 Preliminary expenditures are amortised in the year in which incurred. 

L.	   Foreign Currency Transactions 

	 i.	 The transactions in foreign currencies are stated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transactions.

	 ii. 	 The difference on account of fluctuations in the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction and the  date of realization 
is charged to the Profit  and Loss Account.

	 iii.	 Differences on transactions of Current Assets and Current Liabilities remaining unsettled at the year-end are recognized in the 
Profit and Loss Account.

M.	 Treatment of Contingent Liabilities
	 Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of notes to accounts. Disputed demands in respect of income tax and other proceeding are 

disclosed as contingent liabilities. Payments in respect of such demands, if any are shown as advances.

N.	 Accounting for Taxation of Income 
	 Current taxes
	 Income Tax is accrued in the same period the related revenue and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax annually 

based on the tax liability computed after considering tax allowances and exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated 
that a liability due to disallowance or other matters is probable. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to 
future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future tax liability, is recognised as an asset in the Balance sheet if there is 
convincing evidence that the group will pay normal tax after the tax holiday period and the resultant assets can be measured reliably. 
The Company offsets, on a year to year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where it is its legally enforceable right and where it 
intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

	 Deferred taxes
	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to timing differences that result between 

the profits offered for income taxes and the profits as per the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. The effect of a change 
in tax rates on deferred tax and assets or liabilities are recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax Assets 
are recognized only to the extent there is virtual certainty that the assets can be realized in the future. Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed 
as at each Balance Sheet date.

O.	 Retirement benefits of the Employee: 
	 The Company has both defined contribution and defined benefit plans of which some have assets in special funds or similar securities. 

The Plans are financed by the Company and in case of some defined contribution plans, by the Company along with its employees.
	 •	 Gratuity 
		  In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at 

retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the company. The gratuity 
fund is managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit 
plan. The company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan is provided by for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an 
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independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses immediately in 
the profit and loss account. 

	 •	 Provident fund, State Insurance, Labour Welfare Fund, Professional Tax
		  These are the defined contribution plans in which the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds. The Company’s 

contributions to these funds are reported as an expense during the period in which the employees perform services that the 
payment covers.

	 •	 Compensated Absences
		  The employees of the Company are entitled to compensate absence. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized 

accrued compensated absence and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation at retirement or termination of 
employment for the unutilized accrued compensated absence. The company follows the cash basis of accounting for recording 
the obligation of leave encashment. In other words, the company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in 
which it has been encashed by the employees.

	 •	 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)
		  In respect of Employee’s Stock Option, the excess of market price on the date of grant over the exercise price is recognized as 

deferred employee compensation expense amortized over vesting period.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
as on March 31, 2016
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Note 2 - Share Capital 	  (` in Lakhs)
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2016
 As at 

March 31, 2015
Authorised : 
 75,00,00,000 (Previous Year 75,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each  7,500.00  7,500.00 
TOTAL  7,500.00   7,500.00  
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up : 
 52,91,96,170 (Previous Year 50,34,82,240) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each fully paid up  5,291.96   5,034.82  
TOTAL  5,291.96   5,034.82  

Note 3 - Reserves & Surplus 	  (` in Lakhs)
Particulars 
 

 As at 
March 31, 2016 

 As at 
March 31, 2015

(i) Securities Premium Account 
 As per last Balance Sheet  16,997.11   16,997.11 
 Add: On shares issued during the year  24,816.69 -
 Add : Transferred from Shares Options 
outstanding account  

 181.86 -

 Less: Capitalised on issue of shares  -    -   
 Less: Share issue expenses  -    -   

 41,995.66   16,997.11  
(ii) a) Shares Options Outstanding Account 

 As per last Balance Sheet  1,248.41  959.41 
 Add : On further grant of options  1,065.68  691.71 
 Less: Reversal due to lapsation of options  (519.07)  (402.71)
 Less: Transferred to Securities Premium Account  (181.85)  -   

 1,613.17   1,248.41  
 b) Deferred Employee Compensation Expense 
 As per last Balance Sheet  (669.25)  (389.36)
 Add : On further grant of options  (1,065.68)  (691.71)
 Less: Reversal due to lapsation of options  190.98 -
 Less : Amortised during the year  193.75  411.83 

 (1,350.20)  (669.24)
(iii)  General Reserve 

 As per last Balance Sheet  7,791.68  4,585.95 
 Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account  3,914.71  3,205.73 
 Less: Transferred to Profit and Loss Account  -    -   

 11,706.39  7,791.68  
(iv)  Surplus in the Profit & Loss Account 

 As per last Balance Sheet  65,330.92  40,546.54 
 Add: Profit for the year  39,475.13  32,184.29 
 Amount available for appropriations  1,04,806.05   72,730.83 
 Appropriations: 
 Add:	 Transferred from reserves  -    -   
 Add:	 Profit on disposal of investment in 

subsidiary 
 -    -

 Less :	 Amounts transferred from block of  
Fixed Assets

-  (2,646.06)

	 (net of taxes) (Refer Note I below) 
 Less:	 Transferred to general reserve  (3,914.71)  (3,205.73)
	 Proposed dividend  (6,614.95)  (1,258.70)
	 Corporate Dividend Tax  (1,346.65)  (251.67)
	 Short Provision for Dividend of  

previous year 
 (64.19) -

	 Short Provision for Dividend Tax Payable of 
previous year  (12.83)

 
 (37.75)

 

 (11,953.33)  92,852.72  (7,399.91)  65,330.92 
 TOTAL  1,46,817.74  90,698.88  
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Note :  				  
Note I : With the applicability of Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 1, 2014, and as per the provisions of Note 7 of Para C of Schedule 
II of the Companies Act, 2013, the carrying amount of the existing assets as on April 1, 2014 where the remaining useful life of an asset is Nil, 
the residual value has been transferred to the retained earnings in the previous year. The block-wise break up of the amounts transferred are 
as follows :
		  		

Furnitures & Fixtures  82.91 
Office Equipments  222.70 
Computers & Printers  3,702.96 

 4,008.57  

The tax impact amounting to ` 1362.51 lakhs on the above amounts has been reduced from the amounts transferred from block 
of fixed assets.

 Note 4- Money Received against Share Warrant 
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

 Warrant Application money -  25,000.00  
TOTAL -  25,000.00  

Note :  				  
The Company had issued 250.00 lacs fully convertible warrants to M/s. Vakrangee Capital Private Limited at ` 100/- per warrant in 
February, 2014. The warrants issued were convertible into equal no. of equity shares having face value of  ` 1/- with premium of  ` 99/- 
per share. Those warrants have been converted into 250.00 lacs fully paid-up equity shares of  ` 1/- each in August, 2015 i.e. before the 
expiry of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants. These equity shares are subject to lock-in-period of three years from date of 
allotment of the equity shares or such reduced period as may be permitted under the SEBI Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements 
(ICDR) Regulations, 2009 as amended time to time.

Note 5 - Long-Term Borrowings 
(` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(A) Secured Loans 
(i)	 Term Loans 
        - From Banks  1,250.00   3,740.60  
        - From Others  -    1,250.00  -  3,740.60  
(ii)	 Long-term maturities of finance lease 

obligations 
 -   -  - 

(iii)	 Deposits  -   -  -   
( A )   1,250.00   3,740.60  

(B) Unsecured Loans 
(i)	 Term Loans 
	 - From Bank  -    -   -
	 - From Others  -    -    -    -   
(iii)	 Deposits  -    -   

( B )    -    -   
TOTAL (A + B)  1,250.00  3,740.60  

160                          VAKRANGEE LIMITED  
Annual Report 15-16



Note 6 - Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 
			   (` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
Liabilities 
(i)	 On account of difference in depreciation 

on Fixed Assets 
 1,305.77   4,271.89 

(ii)	 Timing differences on Tax Provisions  -    -   
( A )  1,305.77   4,271.89 

Assets 
(i)	 Provision for Leave Encashment  20.40   18.81 
(ii)	 Timing differences on Tax Provisions  -    -   

( B )  20.40  18.81 
TOTAL (A - B)  1,285.37  4,253.08  

Note 7 - Other Long-Term Liabilities 
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2016 

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Trade payables  216.62   157.17 

Others :  - -

TOTAL  216.62   157.17 

Note 8 - Short-Term Borrowings 	
(` in Lakhs)

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015

 (A) Secured Loans 

(i)	 Loans repayable on demand 

	 - From Banks   28,275.04  29,968.80  

(ii)	 Loans & Advances from Related Parties  -    -   

(iii)	 Inter Corporate Deposits  -    -   

 ( A )  28,275.04  29,968.80  

 (B) Unsecured Loans 

(i)	 Loans & Advances from Related Parties  -    1,588.60 

(ii)	 Inter Corporate Deposits  -    -   

(iii)	 Other Loans & Advances   -    -   

 ( B ) - 1588.60

 TOTAL (A + B)  28,275.04   31,557.40  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
as on March 31, 2016
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
as on March 31, 2016

Note 9 - Trade Payables 
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2016 

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Current payables (including acceptances) outstanding for less than 12 months  11,435.69  21,313.21  

TOTAL  11,435.69   21,313.21  

Note 10 - Other Current Liabilities 
					     (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 
 

 As at 
March 31, 2016 

 As at 
March 31, 2015

 Current maturities of long-term debts  2,494.33  6,287.61 

 Current maturities of finance lease obligations  -    18.35 

 Interest accrued and due on borrowings  25.27  171.81 

 Unpaid Dividend  30.13  33.82 

 Other Payables 

 PF, ESIC & LWF Payable  27.31  62.29 

 Service Tax Payable  129.64  45.55 

 Sales Tax Payable  2.51  4.02 

 TDS Payable  109.59  188.05 

 Staff Emoluments Payable  357.05  369.97 

 Security Deposit  6.23  -   

 Advance from customers  170.81  320.53 

 Other Liabilities  637.36  801.07 

 TOTAL  3,990.23  8,303.07 

Note 11 - Short-Term Provisions 
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 
 

 As at 
March 31, 2016 

 As at 
March 31, 2015

 Provision for Expenses for Goods & services  3,655.32  6,708.77 

 Provisions for Employees' benefits   185.57  117.85 

 Provision for Wealth Tax  -    0.01 

 Provision for Taxation (net of taxes paid)  642.67  5,328.40 

 Provision for Proposed Dividend  6,614.95  1,258.71 

 Provision for Tax on Proposed Dividend  1,346.65  251.67 

TOTAL  12,445.16  13,665.41  
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
as on March 31, 2016

 Note 13 - Non-Current Investments 	
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 (a) Trade Investments 

(i) Investment in Equity Instruments 
Unquoted Investments 
  - In Others 
 2500 Equity Shares of CSC e-Governance 
Services India Ltd. of ` 1000/- each fully paid 
up (Previous Year Nil)  25.00  25.00 

( A )  25.00  25.00    
(ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 
 24.9375 units of Aditya Birla Real Estate 
Fund- I 
of ` 1,00,000/- each partly paid up ` 60,000/- 
per unit  
(Previous Year ` 60,000/- per unit, 24.9375 
units) 

 15.00  15.00 

 99,990 units of Union KBC Asset Allocation 
Fund - Moderate 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year 
99,990) 

 10.00  10.00 

 2,99,990 units of Union KBC Capital 
Protection Oriented Fund - Series 1 
 of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year 
2,99,990) 

- 30.00

 2,00,000 units of Union KBC Capital 
Protection Oriented Fund - Series 2 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year 
2,00,000) 

 -  20.00 

1,00,000 units of Union KBC Capital 
Protection Oriented Fund - Series 5 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year 
1,00,000) 

 10.00  10.00 

4,99,990 units of Union KBC Trigger Fund 
Series 2 - Regular Plan 
of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year Nil) 

 50.00 50.00

  3,35,077.757 units of Union KBC Small & 
Midcap Fund - Regular Plan 
 of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year Nil) 

 39.94  - 

( B )  124.94   135.00  
Total  (A+B)  149.94   160.00 

	 (` in Lakhs)
(b) Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2016
 As at  

March 31, 2015
Aggregate value of: 
  Quoted investments - Mutual Funds (Market Value : ` 123.38 lakhs, P.Y. ` 156.19 lakhs)  124.94  135.00 
 Unquoted investments   25.00  25.00 

  149.94   160.00 
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Note 14 - Long-Term Loans & Advances 	
(` in Lakhs) 

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(i)	 Capital Advances 
(Unsecured, considered good) 
Advance against property  383.52  458.52 
Advance against capital goods  716.76  1,100.28  -    458.52 
(ii)	 Security Deposits 
 (Unsecured, considered good) 
 Security Deposit  21.79  21.96 
(iii)	Other Loans and Advances  
(Unsecured, considered good) 
MAT Credit Entitlement  66.87  12.87 
Balances with statutory / revenue authorities :   -   

- Income Tax (net of provision for taxation)  -    -   
- Sales Tax  -    66.87  -    12.87 

 TOTAL  1,188.94  493.35 

Note 15 - Other Non-Current Assets 	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(i)	 Long Term Trade Recievables 

- Unsecured, considered good  1,009.85  138.36 
- Doubtful  -    -   

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  44.50  (44.50)
 965.35  93.86 

(ii)	 Others
- Non-Current Bank Balances (Note No. 18)  753.75  453.14 
- Prepaid Expenses  0.69  1.42 

 754.44  454.56 
 TOTAL   1,719.79  548.42 

Note 16 - Inventories 	   	
(` in Lakhs) 

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(i)	 Raw Material  45,727.84  12,505.03 
(ii)	 Work in Progress  4,258.32  3,745.17 
(iii)	 Finished Goods   513.19  465.70 
(iv)	 Consumables  201.57  209.02 
(v)	 Stores & Spares  4.78  11.36 
 TOTAL   50,705.70  16,936.28 

(b) 	 Basis of valuation of Inventories  				  
	 Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value on FIFO basis which is in accordance with AS 2 as issued by the ICAI. 	
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Note 17 - Trade Receivables 	  					   
(` in Lakhs) 

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(i)	 Due for a period exceeding six months 

- Unsecured, considered good  4,696.34  12,465.60 
- Doubtful  -    -   

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  -    -    -    -   

(ii)	 Others 
- Unsecured, considered good  81,088.88  1,07,466.80 
- Doubtful  -    -   

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  -    -    -    -   
TOTAL  85,785.22  1,19,932.40 

Note 18 - Cash & Cash equivalents 		
(` in Lakhs) 

(a) Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(A)	 Cash & Cash Equivalents 
(i)	 Balances with Banks :  
	 - Current Accounts  14,051.34  675.49 
(ii)	 Cash-in-hand  7.10  6.64 
(iii)	 Cheques & Drafts in-hand  -    -   

 14,058.44  682.13 
(B)	 Other Bank Balances 
(i)	 Earmarked balances  30.13  33.82 
(ii)	 Amount held as margin money or security 

against borrowings, guarantee, other 
commitments  3,399.55  3,546.92 

(iii)	 Deposits with Banks :        
	 - with original maturity period of more 

than 3 months but less than 12 months  -    10.75 
	 - with original maturity period of more 

than 12 months  -    -   
 3,429.68  3,591.49 

 17,488.12  4,273.62 
Less: Non-Current Other Bank Balances,     	
disclosed under Other  Non-Current Assets 
(Note No. 15) 
(i)	 Amount held as margin money or security 

against borrowings, guarantee, other 
commitments 

 753.75  453.14 

(ii)	 Deposits with Banks :        
	 - with original maturity period more than 

12 months 
 -    -   

 753.75  453.14 
 TOTAL  16,734.37  3,820.48 
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Note 19 - Short-Term Loans and Advances 	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(i)	 Security Deposits 
(Unsecured, considered good) 
Security Deposit  1,140.19  1,135.69 
(ii)	 Loans and Advances to Related Parties 
(Unsecured, considered good) 
Dues from subsidiaries  -   -

Dues from associate companies - -

Dues from companies in which the company's 
managing director is a director 

 -    -   

 -   -
(ii)	 Other Loans and Advances  
(Unsecured, considered good) 
Loans to others  -    -   
Earnest Money Deposit  70.35  150.35 
Other Deposit  0.05  0.04 
Balances with statutory / revenue authorities :  
- Sales Tax  24.73  28.03 
- Income Tax (net of provision for taxation)  530.65  250.39 

- CENVAT Credit receivable  -    14.84 
 625.78  443.65 

TOTAL  1,765.97  1,579.34 

Note 20 - Other Current Assets 
(` in Lakhs)  

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
Other advances receivable in cash or kind or for 
value to be received 
 Staff Loans  18.53  18.59 
 Advances for Expenses  15.60  4.90 
 Advances for Purchases  37,549.80  30,366.41 
 Other Receivables  1,099.95  575.44 
 Prepaid Expenses  57.81  200.15 

 38,741.69  31,165.49 
TOTAL  38,741.69  31,165.49 
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Note 21 - Revenue from Operations	  	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(a)	 Income from e-governance activities  3,15,502.14  2,77,334.15 
(b)	 Sale of Products 
- Computer consumables & peripherals   64.98  22.25 
- Others  -    -   

64.98 22.25 
(c)	 Sale of Services 
  - Information Technology-Enabled Services (ITES)  1,666.47  679.34 
  - Information Technology-Enabled Services (ITES)

(Rural)  1,832.59 
  - Others  4.15  8.80 

 3,503.21  688.14 
(d)	 Other Operating Revenues 
- Commission  1.67  2.94 
- Scrap Sale  1.46  0.45 

 3.33  3.39 
TOTAL  3,19,073.66  2,78,047.93 

Note 22 - Other Income		   	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(i)	 Interest Income on 
	 - Bank Deposits  279.77  289.58 
	 - Others  4.10  283.87  15.70  305.28 
(ii)	 Dividend Income on 
	 - Investment in Other Long-Term Instruments  2.00  2.00  -    -   
(iii)	 Net gain/loss on sale of Fixed Assets  134.89  18.41 
(iv)	 Net gain on sale of Investments  14.61  66.24 
(v)	 Gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net)  125.69  197.58 
(vi)	 Other Non-Operating Income (net of expenses
	 directly attributable to such income)

- -

(vii)	 Other Non-Operating Income (net of expenses 
directly attributable to such income)

	 - Rent Received  1.50  1.50 
	 - Sundry Balances written back  1.24  0.15 
	 - Miscellaneous Income  0.21  2.95  2.02  3.67 
TOTAL  564.01  591.18 
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Note 23 - Operating Expenses			    	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

Cost for Sales  
- Opening Stock   12,725.40  12,498.61 
- Add : Purchases during the year  2,61,811.24  2,00,185.52 

 2,74,536.64  2,12,684.13 

- Less : Closing Stock  45,934.19  12,725.40 
 2,28,602.45  1,99,958.73 

 Procurement of Manpower   60.64  219.75 

 Project Expenses  843.23  1,139.09 

 Image Processing Expenses  -    121.80 

 Printing Charges  24.80  15.77

 Communication Costs  71.21  175.92 

 Conveyance & Travelling Expenses  51.69  34.13 
 Transportation, Octroi and Loading / Unloading 
Charges 

 7.08  16.36 

 Rent, Rates and Taxes  45.79  45.30 

 Refurbishment Charges  -    -   

 Commission Expenses  2,938.19  537.19 

TOTAL 232645.08 202264.03 

Note 24 - Changes in Inventories				     	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(a)	 At the beginning of the period
(i)	 Finished Goods  465.71  508.66
(ii)	 Work-in-Progress  3745.17  3241.26 

 4210.88 3749.92 

Less : (b) At the end of the period
(i)	 Finished Goods  513.19  465.71

(ii)	 Work-in-Progress  4258.32  3745.17 
 4771.51  4210.88 

TOTAL (560.63)  (460.95 )

Note 25 - Employee Benefits Expenses					      	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(i)	 Salaries & Wages  2,451.07  1,803.96 
(ii)	 Contribution to Provident & Other Funds  152.50  99.92 
(iii)	 Employee Compensation Expenses  (134.34)  9.11 

(iv)	 Staff Welfare Expenses  66.92  46.24 

TOTAL  2,536.15  1,959.23 
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(b) 	 Detailed note on disclosure as required by AS-15
	 For details, refer Note No. 34.

Note 26 - Finance Costs						       	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

Interest Expenses 
- Banks   5,290.74  6,631.65 
- Others  149.00  5,439.74  137.08  6,768.73 

 Bank Charges & Commission  163.98  726.03 
TOTAL  5,603.72  7,494.76 

Note 27 - Other Expenses							        	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

 Repairs & Maintenance :
    - Building  51.64  39.75 
    - Vehicle  1.98  1.85 
    - Others  36.13  89.75  29.07  70.67 
Advertisement and Publicity Expenses  244.30  191.33 
Business Promotion Expenses  86.78  78.46 
Sponsorship Fees  28.74  46.34 
Commission & Brokerage  0.65  0.98 
Rates & Taxes  63.72  62.82 
Insurance  17.57  24.18 
Electricity Expenses  44.29  36.17 
Printing and Stationery  35.53  25.71 
Communication Costs  111.57  100.10 
Fees & Subscriptions  32.48  26.60 
Listing, Registrar & Share Issue/Transfer Expenses  5.04  27.60 
Directors' Remuneration  95.85  82.14 
Directors' Sitting Fees  6.70  3.87 
Legal & Professional Fees - Other than payments to Auditor :
     - Consultancy Charges  73.16  177.03 
     - Legal & Professional Fees  651.14  471.87 
     - Filing Stamp Duty and Franking Charges  14.57  24.08 
     - Registration charges  0.75  739.61  0.02  673.00 
Payments to Auditors :
     - Audit fees  22.27  14.33 
     - Tax Audit fees  4.15  2.98 
     - For Other Services   5.56  3.81 
     - For Reimbursement of Expenses  0.20  32.17  -    21.12 
Conveyance & Travelling  129.38  88.30 
Vehicle Expenses  6.55  6.65 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure  420.73  321.25 
Office & General Expenses  54.88  35.84 
 Donation  -    32.00 
Miscellaneous Expenses  4.15  8.55 
TOTAL  2,250.44  1,963.67 
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Note 28 - Companies considered in the consolidated financial statement are :

 Date of 
becoming 
subsidiary 

 Country of 
Incorporation 

% voting power held

Name of the Company  As at 31st 
March, 2016 

 As at 31st 
March, 2015 

Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. 08-May-09 Philippines  100.00  100.00 
Vakrangee Finserve Limited 07-Sep-11  India  100.00  100.00 

The audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are drawn for the twelve-month period ending on 31st 
March, 2016, except for the subsidiary Company, M/s Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc., Philippines, whose audited accounts are for 
the period from 1st January, 2015 to 31st December, 2015. For the purpose of consolidation, unaudited financial statements 
for the period from 1st April, 2015 to 31st March, 2016 have been considered so as to incorporate adjustments for the effect of 
transactions or other events that occurred between 1st January, 2016 to 31st March, 2016.

Note 29 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for) 		   
(` in Lakhs)  

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
(A) Contingent Liabilities 
(i)	 Claims against the company not acknowledged 

as debts 
 27.23  27.23 

(ii)	 Company has provided Counter Guarantee in 
relation to Bank Guarantee to various parties 
which is not acknowledged in books of accounts 

 1,938.27  2,089.90 

(iii)	 Other contingent liabilities (Refer Note 1 below)  -   -
( A )  1,965.50  2,117.13 

(B) Commitments 
(i)	 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 

executed on capital account not provided for 
-  25.00 

(ii)	 Uncalled liabilities on share and other 
investments partly paid up  10.00  10.00 

(iii) Subscription towards shares of wholly-owned 
subsidiary  100.00  -   

(iv)	 Others commitments   -  -   
( B )  110.00  35.00 

TOTAL (A + B)  2,075.50  2,152.13 

Note :  					   
1.	 The amount of liabilities, which may occur on levying of penalty and/or charges by clients for delays in execution of contracts 

within the time prescribed in the agreement, is unascertained.

Note 30 - Segment Reporting					   
The Company’s activities predominantly revolve around providing the e-governance related activites of Mission Mode Projects 
covered under “National e-Governance Plan” (NeGP). Considering the nature of Company’s business and operations, there is only 
one reportable segment (business and / or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standard 17 
– “Segment Reporting” notified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006. However, on the basis of delivery modes, 
the Company’s business operations has been classified into two business segments, viz. e-Governance Projects and Vakrangee 
Kendra.

Revenue and identifiable operating expenses in relation to these segments are categorised based on items that are individually 
identifiable to those segments. Certain expenses such as depreciation, which form a significant component of total expenses, 
are not specifically allocable to specific segments as the underlying assets are used interchangeably to utilise the resources 
optimally. The management believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating to those costs and expenses, 
and accordingly these expenses are separately disclosed as ‘unallocated’ and adjusted against the total income of the Company. 
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Fixed assets or liabilities contracted have not been identified to any of the segments as the fixed assets and services are used 
interchangeably between segments. Accordingly, no disclosure relating to total segment assets and liabilities are made. 		
			 

(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars e-Governance 
Projects

Vakrangee 
Kendra

Total

Revenue from Operations  1,48,181.02  1,70,892.64  3,19,073.66 
 (1,58,700.00)  (1,19,347.94)  (2,78,047.93)

Segmental Results (Profit before 
Depreciation, Interest and Tax)  41,476.99 40,725.64 82,202.63 

 (35,848.51)  (36,077.90)  (71,926.41)
Less : 
Depreciation  16,404.30 

 (16,485.54)
Finance Costs  5,603.72 

 (7,497.55)
Unallocable expenses (net of unallocable 
income)  (564.01)

 (989.44)   
Profit before exceptional and extra-
ordinary item  60,758.63 

 (48,932.76)
Less : Exceptional and extra-ordinary item  -   
Profit Before Tax  60,758.63 

 (48,932.76)
Less : Tax Expense  21,283.50 

 (16,748.47)
Profit After Tax  39,475.13 

 (32,184.29)
Note: Figures in brackets pertains to previous year.

Note 31 - Earnings Per Equity Share
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(a) Net profit after tax attributable to equity 
shareholders for
Basic EPS  39,475.13  32,184.29 
Add/Less: Adjustment relating to potential 
equity shares

 -   
 -   

Net profit after tax attributable to equity 
shareholders for Diluted EPS  39,475.13  32,184.29 

(b) Weighted average no. of equity shares 
outstanding during the year
For Basic EPS  51,98,24,565  50,34,82,240 
For Diluted EPS  53,04,24,580  53,11,03,578 

(c) Face Value per Equity Share (`)  1.00  1.00 
Basic EPS  7.59  6.39 
Diluted EPS  7.44  6.06 
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(d) Reconciliation between no. of shares used 
for calculating basic and diluted EPS
No. of shares used for calculating Basic EPS  51,98,24,565  50,34,82,240 
Add: Potential equity shares  1,06,00,014  2,76,21,338 
No. of shares used for calculating Diluted EPS  53,04,24,580  53,11,03,578 

Note 32 - Prior Period Items	
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

(a) Prior Period Expenses
Purchases  0.44  26.97 
Repiar & Maintenance  1.74  2.91 
Professional Fees  -    0.84 
Salary & Wages  1.07  1.00 
Rent  1.64  -   
Communication Costs  0.03  -   
TOTAL  4.92  31.72 

(b) Prior Period Incomes
Salary & Wages  -    0.13 
Other Income  -    0.02 
TOTAL  -    0.15 

Note 33 - Related Party Details			 
(a)	 Key Management Personnel 
	 Mr. Dinesh Nandwana  		 Managing Director & CEO (Chairman & Managing Director upto 26.07.2015)
	 Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar 	 Whole-Time Director
	 Mr. Ramesh Mulchand Joshi 	 Director
	 Mr. Sunil Agarwal 		  Director
	 Mr. Babulal Meena 		  Director
	 Ms. Darshi Shah 		  Company Secretary					  
					  
(b)	  Relative of key management personnel and Name of the enterprises having same key management personnel 

and/ or their relatives as the reporting enterprises with whom the Company has entered into transactions during 
the year

	 Vakrangee Lacteus & Hortus Limited 
	 Vakrangee Capital Private Limited 
	 Vakrangee Technologies Limited  
 	 Mr. Manoj Nandwana 
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	 Related Party Transactions 
	 - In relation to (a) 
	 (` in Lakhs) 

Nature of Transactions For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

Director Remuneration  95.85  82.14 
ESOP Perquisites 2.85  -   
Directors' Sitting Fees  6.70  3.87 
Employee Benefits Expenses  5.92  4.90 
Balance outstanding as on 31 March  NIL  NIL 

	 - In relation to (b) 
	 (` in Lakhs) 

 Nature of Transactions For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

Reimbursement of Expenses  17.29  14.15 
Salary Paid  5.05  5.10 
Realisation from Debtors  -    72.13 
Warrant Application Money Received  -    14,784.95 
Conversion of Warrants into Equity Shares  25,000.00  -   
Interest Paid  3.46  -   
Loans Taken  -    79.00 
Loans Repaid  1,592.06  14.00 
Balance Outstanding as on 31 March:
Short Term Borrowings  -    1,588.60 
Warrant Application Money Received  -    25,000.00 

Note 34 - Gratuity & Leave encashment	 							     
The Company has provided for Gratuity and leave encashment, in accordance AS-15, “Employee Benefits”, the Company has 
provided the liability on actuarial basis.
					   
a)	 Gratuity
	 Actuarial assumptions: 	

(` in Lakhs)  

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Mortality Table (LIC)  2006-08 (Ultimate)  1994-96 (Ultimate) 
 Withdrawal  Rate    1% to 3% depending on age  1% to 3% depending on age 
 Discount rate  8% per annum  8% per annum 
 Salary Escalation 5% 5%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial					   
					   
Amount recognized in the Profit and Loss account

(` in Lakhs)  

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 PV of Past Service Benefit  132.77  104.59 
 Current Service Cost   45.17  35.13 
 Actuarial (gains)/losses for the period  57.64  76.56 
 Obligation at the end of the year.  218.55  178.83 
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b)	 Leave encashment
	 Actuarial assumptions: 	

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
 Period From 1st April, 2015 to 31st March, 

2016
From 1st April, 2014 to 31st March, 

2015
 Discount rate 8.00% per annum 8.00% per annum
 Salary growth rate 5.00% per annum 5.00% per annum
 Mortality  IALM 2006-08 Ultimate IALM 2006-08 Ultimate
 Expected rate of return  -    -   
 Withdrawal rate (per annum) 2.00 % per annum (18 - 60 years) 2.00 % per annum (18 - 60 years)

Amount recognized in the Profit and Loss account
(` in Lakhs)  

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
Current Liability  2.78  1.46
Non current liability  56.17  38.06
Total  58.95  39.52

Note 35 - leases					   

II. Finance Leases
The Company has taken Computer Equipments & other Fixed Assets on finance lease during the year. Future minimum lease 
payments & present value of minimum lease payments towards the finance lease are as below : 

(` in Lakhs)  

Particulars  As at March 31, 2016  As at March 31, 2015
i)	 Minimum lease payments 
Not later than one year  -    18.56 
Later than one year and not later than five years  -    -   
Total  -    18.56 
ii)	 Present value of minimum lease payments 
Not later than one year  -    18.35 
Later than one year and not later than five years  -    -   
 Add : Future finance charges  -    0.21  
Total -  18.56 
					   
Note 36 - Previous year figures			 
The figures of the previous year have been re-arranged, re-grouped and re- classified wherever necessary.			 
		
For S. K. Patodia & Associates	 For & on behalf of the Board 			 
Chartered Accountants					   
FRN : 112723W					   
				    Dinesh Nandwana				   Subhash Singhania	
Arun Poddar			   Managing Director & CEO		   	 Chief Financial Officer 	
Partner				    DIN : 00062532						    
Mem. No. 134572					   
				    Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar		  Darshi Shah	
				    Director					     Company Secretary	
Place : Mumbai			   DIN : 00062638			 
Date   : May 11, 2016
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
I hereby record my presence at the Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, September 30, 2016 at  
11.00 AM at The Leela Mumbai, Andheri Kurla Road, Sahar, Mumbai, Maharashtra-400 059.

Name & Address of the Member_______________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Registered Folio /Client ID____________________________________________________________________________________________

DPID____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

No. of Shares_ _____________________________________________________________________________________________________

Name of the Proxy__________________________________________________________________________________________________

Name of the Member or Proxy or Representative present ___________________________________________________________________

Signature of the Member or Proxy or representative present_ ________________________________________________________________

Note: A member or his/her duly appointed Proxy wishing to attend the Meeting, must complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance. 

PROXY FORM
Name of the member(s): .........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Registered Address: ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................ E-mail ID: ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................

Folio No. / Client Id: ............................................................. DP ID: .......................................................................................................................................................................................................

I/We, being the member(s) of ................................................................... shares of the Vakrangee Limited, hereby appoint.

1.	 Name :....................................................................................................... 	 Address : .................................................................................................................................................................

	 Email Id : ................................................................................................. 	 Signature: ...............................................................................................................................or failing him,

2. 	 Name : ..................................................................................................... 	 Address : ..................................................................................................................................................................

	 Email Id : ................................................................................................. 	 Signature : ..............................................................................................................................or failing him,

3. 	 Name : .....................................................................................................  	 Address : ..................................................................................................................................................................

	 Email Id : .................................................................................................    	 Signature :................................................................................................................................................................

VAKRANGEE LIMITED
“Vakrangee House”, Plot No. 66, Marol Co-op Industrial Estate, 

Off. M. V. Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400 059
CIN : L65990MH1990PLC056669

Phone: 022 28503412 Fax No. 022 28502017 Email ID: info@vakrangee.in

VAKRANGEE LIMITED
“Vakrangee House”, Plot No. 66, Marol Co-op Industrial Estate, 

Off. M. V. Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400 059
CIN : L65990MH1990PLC056669

Phone: 022 28503412 Fax No. 022 28502017 Email ID: info@vakrangee.in



As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company, 
to be held on Friday, September 30, 2016 at 11.00 AM at The Leela Mumbai, Andheri Kurla Road, Sahar, Mumbai, Maharashtra-400 059 and at 
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Item 
No. Resolutions

For Against

I/We assent to 
the resolution

I/We dissent 
from the 

resolution.

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

1 Adoption of Financial Statements for FY ended March 31, 2016

2 Declaration of Dividend for FY ended March 31, 2016

3 Re-appointment of Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar (DIN: 00062638) who retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

4 Appointment of M/s. S K Patodia & Associates, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditor 

Signed this .......................................................... day of ..................................... 2016.
	

Signature of Shareholder: .............................................................. 	

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, at 
“Vakrangee House”, Plot No. 66, Marol Co-op Industrial Estate, Off. M. V. Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400 059, Maharashtra not less than 
FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.



OTHER OFFICE ADDRESS:

New Delhi
Vakrangee Limited 2nd Floor, 

Flat No. 238, Ansal Chamber-2, 6, 
Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi-110066  

 
Jaipur

3/55 Paras Ram Nagar, 
Dher Ke Balaji, Sikar Road Jaipur-302023 

 
Chandigarh 

House No. 1170, 
Sector - 22/B, Chandigarh-160022 

 
Lucknow 

413, Aashiyana Colony, 
Near Aashiyana Thana, 

Kanpur Road, Lucknow-226012 
 

Pune
Unit No 243/244, 2nd Floor, 

Akshay Complex Condominum, 
Dhole Patil Road, 

Near to Ganpati Mandir, Pune-411001 
 

Indore 
Flat No 306, 

Diamond Trade Center, 
Opp. Bansi Trade 

Center, Palasia Indore-452001
 

Bhubaneshwar 
House No. GA 382, 

1st Floor, Shailashree Vihar, 
Near Niladri Vihar Auto Stand, 

Bhubaneswar-751 016
 

Patna 
Flat No 203/B, Aditya Tower, 

2nd Floor, White House, 
Budh Marg, Patna Bihar-800001

 
Ranchi 

Hari Kunj, Shiboo Chowk, 
Sukhdeo Nagar, Opp. Reliance Fresh, 

Ratu Road, Ranchi, Jharkhand-834005
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